
Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       1                                                                                                              August 20, 2019

          

County of Inyo
Board of Supervisors

Board of Supervisors Room
County Administrative Center

224 North Edwards
Independence, California

  All members of the public are encouraged to participate in the discussion of any items on the Agenda.  Anyone wishing to speak, please obtain a 
card  from  the Board Clerk and  indicate each  item you would  like  to discuss.   Return  the completed card  to  the Board Clerk before  the Board 
considers the item (s) upon which you wish to speak. You will be allowed to speak about each item before the Board takes action on it. 

Any member  of  the  public may  also make  comments  during  the  scheduled  “Public  Comment”  period  on  this  agenda  concerning  any  subject 
related to the Board of Supervisors or County Government.  No card needs to be submitted in order to speak during the “Public Comment” period.
Public Notices: (1)    In Compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act,  if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting please 
contact the Clerk of the Board at (760) 8780373.  (28 CFR 35.10235.104 ADA Title II). Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the 
County  to  make  reasonable  arrangements  to  ensure  accessibility  to  this  meeting.  Should  you  because  of  a  disability  require  appropriate 
alternative formatting of this agenda, please notify the Clerk of the Board 72 hours prior to the meeting to enable the County to make the agenda 
available in a reasonable alternative format. (Government Code Section 54954.2).  (2) If a writing, that is a public record relating to an agenda item 
for an open session of a regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors,  is distributed less than 72 hours prior to the meeting, the writing shall be 
available for public inspection at the Office of the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, 224 N. Edwards, Independence, California and is available per 
Government Code § 54957.5(b)(1).              
Note: Historically the Board does break for lunch; the timing of a lunch break is made at the discretion of the Chairperson and at 
the Board’s convenience.

August 20, 2019  8:30 AM
 

1. PUBLIC COMMENT
 

CLOSED SESSION 
 

  2. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION – Los Angeles 
Department of Water and Power v. Inyo County et al (Kern Superior Court Case No. 
BCV18101513KCT (CEQA)).

 

  3. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION – Inyo County 
v. Wilder Barton Inc. (Inyo County Superior Court Case No. SICVCV1964071)

 

  4. CONFERENCE WITH COUNTY’S LABOR NEGOTIATORS – Regarding employee 
organizations: Deputy Sheriff’s Association (DSA); Elected Officials Assistant 
Association (EOAA); Inyo County Correctional Officers Association (ICCOA); Inyo 
County Employees Association (ICEA); Inyo County Probation Peace Officers 
Association (ICPPOA); IHSS Workers; Law Enforcement Administrators’ Association 
(LEAA). Unrepresented employees: all. County designated representatives – 
Administrative Officer Clint Quilter, Assistant County Administrator Leslie Chapman, 
Deputy Personnel Director Sue Dishion, County Counsel Marshall Rudolph, Health 
and Human Services Director Marilyn Mann, and Chief Probation Officer Jeff 
Thomson.

 

OPEN SESSION (With the exception of timed items, all opensession items may be considered at any 
time and in any order during the meeting in the Board’s discretion.)
 

5. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
 

  6. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION AS REQUIRED BY LAW.
 

  7. PUBLIC COMMENT
 

  8. COUNTY DEPARTMENT REPORTS (Reports limited to two minutes)
 



Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       2                                                                                                              August 20, 2019

  9. INTRODUCTIONS  The following new employees will be introduced to the Board: 
Alexandra Barbella, Project Coordinator, Agricultural Commissioner's Office; James 
E. Truhls, Gate Attendant, Recycling & Waste Management; and Fernando Gutierrez 
Crespo, Correctional Officer, Sheriff's Office.

 

DEPARTMENTAL  PERSONNEL ACTIONS 
 

  10. Health & Human Services  Request Board: 

A) Approve the Program Integrity and Quality Assurance Manager job description; 
B) Change the Authorized Strength in Health and Human Services by: 
    1. Deleting one (1) Management Analyst at Range 80 ($5,900  $7,176) 
    2. Adding one (1) Program Integrity and Quality Assurance Manager at Range 80 
($5,900  $7,176); and
C) Find that, consistent with the adopted Authorized Position Review Policy: 
    1. The availability of funding for the requested position exists, as certified by the 
Health and Human Services Director and concurred with by the County 
Administrator, and AuditorController; 
    2. Where internal candidates meet the qualifications for the position, the vacancy 
could possibly be filled through an internal recruitment; however, an external 
recruitment would be more appropriate to ensure qualified applicants apply; 
    3. Approve the hiring of one (1) Program Integrity and Quality Assurance Manager 
at Range 80 ($5,900  $7,176); and 
    4. If an internal candidate is hired into the Program Integrity and Quality Assurance 
Manager position, authorize HHS to backfill the resulting vacancy. 

 

  11. Public Works  Request Board find that, consistent with the adopted Authorized 
Position Review Policy: A) the availability of funding for one (1) Office Technician 
I/II/III exists in the Building & Maintenance Budget (011100) and Road Budget 
(034600), as certified by the Public Works Director and concurred with by the County 
Administrator and AuditorController; B) where internal candidates may meet the 
qualifications for the position, the vacancy could possibly be filled through an internal 
recruitment, but an open recruitment is more appropriate to ensure qualified 
applicants apply; and C) approve the hiring of one (1) Office Technician I/II/III at 
Range 55 ($3,277  $3,985), Range 59 ($3,597  $4,371), or Range 63 ($3,944  
$4,799) depending on qualifications.

 

  12. Water Department  Request Board: A) approve the modified job description for the 
Senior Scientist; and B) change the Authorized Strength in the Water Department 
by reclassifying one Associate Scientist,  Range 76 ($5,3696,528) to Senior 
Scientist, Range 82 ($6,198 $7,526)  and one Scientist, Range 80 ($5,900$7,176) 
to Senior Scientist, Range 82 ($6,198 $7,526).

 

CONSENT AGENDA (Approval recommended by the County Administrator)
 

  13. Child Support Services  Request Board amend Board Minutes and Board Order 
from October 2, 2018, correcting a clerical mistake.

 

  14. Health & Human Services  Request that your Board approve the Data Privacy and 
Security Agreement (PSA) between the California Department of Social Services 
(CDSS) and the Inyo County Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) for 
the period of September 1, 2019 – September 1, 2022 and authorize the Director of 
HHS to sign and submit as instructed.

 



Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       3                                                                                                              August 20, 2019

  15. Public Works  Road Dept.  Request Board: A) declare Bowman Asphalt of 
Bakersfield, CA the successful bidder for 2,000 Tons of Plant (Cold) Mix Asphalt per 
Bid No. 201910; and B) authorize the purchase of 2,000 tons of cold mix asphalt 
from Bowman Asphalt of Bakersfield, CA in an amount not to exceed $264,907.50.

 

  16. Public Works  Road Dept.  Request Board: A) declare Bowman 
Asphalt of Bakersfield, CA the successful bidder for 2,000 Tons of Plant (Cold) Mix 
Asphalt per Bid No. 201911; and B) authorize the purchase of 2,000 Tons of cold 
mix asphalt from Bowman Asphalt of Bakersfield, CA in an amount not to exceed 
$234,877.50.

 

  17. Public Works  Road Dept.  Request Board: A) declare Bowman Asphalt of 
Bakersfield, CA the successful bidder for 1,000 Tons of Plant (Cold) Mix Asphalt per 
Bid No. 201912; and B) authorize the purchase of 1,000 tons of cold mix asphalt 
from Bowman Asphalt of Bakersfield, CA in an amount not to exceed $120,656.25.

 

  18. Public Works  Request Board approve Amendment No. 1 to the 
agreement between the County of Inyo and MGE Engineering Inc. of Sacramento, 
CA, increasing the contract to an amount not to exceed $453,288.81 and adding a 
job classification to the approved Schedule of Fees, and authorize the Chairperson to 
sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained.

 

DEPARTMENTAL (To be considered at the Board's convenience)
 

  19. Water Department  Request Board consider the Letter of Interest received for 
appointment to the Water Commission and appoint one Water Commissioner with a 
term ending December 31, 2022.

 

  20. Health & Human Services  Health/Prevention  
Request Board ratify and approve Agreement No. 1996163 between County of Inyo 
Health and Human Services and the California Department of Health Care Services, 
MediCal  Inmate Program  (MCIP)  in  an amount  not  to  exceed $100,089.29  for  the 
period of July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020, contingent upon the Board's approval of the 
Fiscal Year 20192020 Budget, and authorize the HHS Director to sign. 

 

  21. Health & Human Services  Request your Board ratify and approve the contract 
between the County of Inyo and the Kings View Corporation for telepsychiatry 
services in a total amount not to exceed $25,000 for the period of July 1, 2019 to 
June 30, 2020 and authorize the HHS Deputy Director of Behavioral Health to sign 
the contract and the Privacy Officer to sign the HIPAA Business Association 
Agreement, contingent upon the Board’s adoption of the Fiscal Year 20192020 
Budget.

 

  22. Health & Human Services  Request Board ratify and approve the contract between 
the County of Inyo and Crestwood Behavioral Health, Inc. for residential placement 
for adults in a locked facility or an enhanced board and care in the amount not to 
exceed $22,000 for the period of July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020, contingent upon the 
Board's adoption of the Fiscal Year 20192020 Budget, and authorize the 
Chairperson to sign.

 

  23. Clerk of the Board  Request Board approve the minutes of the regular Board of 
Supervisors meeting of August 13, 2019.

 

COMMENT (Portion of the Agenda when the Board takes comment from the public and County staff)
 

  24. PUBLIC COMMENT
 



Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       4                                                                                                              August 20, 2019

BOARD MEMBERS AND STAFF REPORTS 
 

ADJOURN 
 



County of Inyo

Health & Human Services
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  August 20, 2019 

FROM:  Marilyn Mann 
 
RE:  Request to approve the Program Improvement and Quality Assurance (PIQA) Manager job description; 
change the HHS authorized strength by deleting one Management Analyst (Range 80) and adding one Program 
Improvement and Quality Assurance Manager (Range 80); authorize the hiring of one Program Improvement and 
Quality Assurance Manager position; and authorize the hiring of any subsequent vacancy. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: 

A) Approve the Program Integrity and Quality Assurance Manager job description; 
B) Change the Authorized Strength in Health and Human Services by: 
    1. Deleting one (1) Management Analyst at Range 80 ($5,900 - $7,176) 
    2. Adding one (1) Program Integrity and Quality Assurance Manager at Range 80 ($5,900 - $7,176); and
C) Find that, consistent with the adopted Authorized Position Review Policy: 
    1. The availability of funding for the requested position exists, as certified by the Health and Human Services 
Director and concurred with by the County Administrator, and Auditor-Controller; 
    2. Where internal candidates meet the qualifications for the position, the vacancy could possibly be filled 
through an internal recruitment; however, an external recruitment would be more appropriate to ensure qualified 
applicants apply; 
    3. Approve the hiring of one (1) Program Integrity and Quality Assurance Manager at Range 80 ($5,900 - 
$7,176); and 
    4. If an internal candidate is hired into the Program Integrity and Quality Assurance Manager position, 
authorize HHS to backfill the resulting vacancy. 

 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
A Management Analyst position in Health and Human Services (HHS) that oversees program integrity, quality 
assurance, and quality improvement activities, recently became vacant. The position oversees a team of 
administrative analysts housed in our administration offices who provide a wide range of supports to HHS 
programs, including but not limited to continuous quality improvement, program monitoring, strategic planning, 
program and system assessment and planning, outcome development and analysis, and program evaluation. 
Additionally, this division ensures compliance with mandates such as American’s with Disabilities Act (ADA), 
Privacy and Security, Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA), and the Civil Rights Act. 

The position was established within the Management Analyst series. This series is used for multiple County-wide 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

areas of focus including fiscal and budgeting analysis, personnel and staff development, and program analysis. 
The use of a single title and job description to capture the wide range of duties, skills, and abilities required to 
perform within the context of multiple functions has proved difficult in recruiting and attracting the types of 
skillsets needed for the position in HHS. 

The attached proposed job description was developed in consultation with Personnel to more accurately capture 
the duties, skills, and knowledge needed in this position. The department is respectfully requesting that your 
Board approve the job description for the PIQA Manager, change the Department’s authorized strength by 
deleting one Management Analyst and adding one PIQA Manager, and authorize the department to recruit and 
hire a PIQA Manager, as well as backfill any resulting vacancy. 

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to authorize HSS to make the recommended changes to authorized strength and 
could choose, instead to either not fill the vacant position or authorize it to be filled as a Management Analyst.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
California Department of Social Services (CDSS); California Department of Public Health (CDPH); California 
Department of Health Care Services (DHCS); Risk Management; Probation; Community Corrections Partnership 
(CCP)
 
FINANCING:
State, Federal, and Behavioral and Social Services Realignment funds. This position is currently budgeted 15% 
in Health (045100), 40% in the Social Services Budget (055800), 5% in Tobacco (640317) and 40% in the Mental 
Health Budget (045200) in the Salary and Benefits object category.  No County General Funds.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Program Integrity and Quality Assurance (PIQA) Manager Job Description



  

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
  
 

ANNOUNCES AN OPEN RECRUITMENT FOR: 

 

Program Integrity and Quality Assurance (PIQA) Manager 
 

 

DEPARTMENT:  

LOCATION:  Countywide 

SALARY:  PIQA Manager:    Range 80  $5450  $5726  $6016  $6314  $6628** 

   **(The above monthly salary will be paid over 26 pay periods annually.) 

 

**BENEFITS:  CalPERS Retirement System: Existing (“Classic”) CalPERS members as of January 1, 2013, (2% at 55) –  

Inyo County pays employee contribution for current CalPERS members; New CalPERS members (2% at 62) will be 

required to pay at least 50% of normal cost (6.5%).  Medical Plan – Inyo County pays a portion of employee and dependent 

monthly premium on PERS medical plans; 100% of employee and dependent monthly premium paid for dental and vision; 

$20,000 term life insurance policy on employee.   Vacation – 10 days per year during the first three years; 15 days per year 

after three years; 1 additional day for each year of service after ten years to a maximum of 25 days per year.  Sick leave – 

15 days per year.  Flex (personal days) – 5 days per fiscal year.  Paid holidays – 11 per year.  

 

DEFINITION:  The PIQA Manager class is responsible for tracking outcomes and overseeing quality improvement 

processes across programmatic divisions to create a comprehensive cross system analysis and dashboard for the 

department. This class leads a team of Administrative Analysts to provide analytical support and guidance to program leads 

and/or staff to determine the functionality of their organizational structures and to provide necessary and appropriate 

coordination among key participants for the long range planning and development of organizational strategies.  A PIQA 

Manager designs and conducts extensive management studies where the confines of the studies may be exceedingly broad 

and the actual limits of the project are developed as the study proceeds. 

 

TYPICAL DUTIES for the Current Vacancy:  Duties may include, but are not limited to:  

 Strategize, implement, and maintain multi-faceted and multi-disciplinary Quality Improvement/ Quality 

Assurance activities in an autonomous and independent manner.  

 Per federal and state requirements, oversees Quality Assurance and Quality Improvement activities in various 

HHS programs, including case reviews, home visits, state reporting, program integrity, anti-fraud activities, 

and compilation of outcomes and evaluation data. 

 Preparation of System Improvement Plans, strategic plans, and Performance Improvement Projects involving 

multiple professional stakeholders, with knowledge of best practices and evidence-based research and effective 

outcomes.  

 Ensures compliance with various federal and state requirements, including but not limited to Civil Rights, 

Americans with Disabilities (ADA), Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPPA), and Medi-

Cal compliance regarding fraud, waste and abuse, including internal and external program compliance 

monitoring as required. 

 Plans, organizes, manages, and/or oversees analyst team and determines training and development needs of 

team, as well as providing support department wide to determine training and development needs as directed 

 Creates procedural efficiencies based on assessment and analysis of workflows in various programs and 

provides feedback to employees. Ensures regular and consistent QA/QI team presence within each division to 

support implementation of recommended workflow changes and data tracking systems, as well as to conduct 

internal monitoring of program systems as needed.   

 Supervises staff or directly engages in professional analytical and technical work in the development and 

management of grants and contracts, monitors and reconciles grants and contracts, management of department 

level procurement, and/or coordination of personnel functions as needed. 

 Oversees development of new data tracking projects (i.e., Community Corrections Partnership), ensuring data 

collection from multiple electronic and paper systems, analyzing data to determine program impact as directed. 

 

INYO COUNTY  

PERSONNEL SERVICES 

P. O. BOX 249 

INDEPENDENCE, CA  93526  

(760)  878 -0377 

FAX (760)  87 8-0465  

AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 

(WOMEN, MINORITIES, AND DISABLED ARE ENCOURAGED TO APPLY) 



 Monitors, researches, reviews, and analyzes existing and new legislation and examines its effect on the 

County’s operations; responds to requests for information from within the County as well as from federal, 

state, and local agencies and makes recommendations as well as provides alternatives to said agencies with 

legislative guidelines and requirements. 

 Conducts annual satisfaction surveys both with customers and with employees, and synthesizes information for 

policy review and recommendations. 

 Conducts exit interviews and quarterly stay interviews as defined by the Department, synthesizes information 

and makes recommendations to Department Head and Division leads for workplace improvements. 

 Attends and participates in various board, commission and committee meetings as assigned and as a liaison 

from the department and represents the department as necessary to ensure the highest level of professional 

standards are applied to service delivery within the department, and responds to the more sensitive and difficult 

complaints and requests for information.   

 Prepares agreements, contracts, correspondence, reports, charts, graphs and presentations; responds to 

questionnaires and surveys; establishes and maintains documentation and records as appropriate. 

 Participates in and facilitates the design, development and implementation of countywide programs, systems, 

software, procedures, forms, and projects at the department/division level; coordinates meetings and project 

activities; assists departments/divisions in identifying goals, objectives, activities and outcomes.  

 Builds and maintains positive working relationships with co-workers, County management and staff, special 

interest groups, and the general public utilizing principles of effective customer service. 

 Assists in the management of the department by evaluating existing and proposed organization, policies and 

procedures; consulting with and advising department personnel; making recommendations and directing, 

reviewing, and evaluating the implementation of changes. 

 Acts as a hearing officer and grievance officer to hear customer complaints, and reviews Departmental 

program actions with customers.  Ensures compliance with administrative hearing guidelines as defined by 

Department or prescribed by regulation. 

 Participates in orientation of new HHS employees. 

 Some travel may be required. 

 Performs related duties as assigned. 

 

EMPLOYMENT STANDARDS 

 

Knowledge of: 

 Principles and practices of public and business administration and leadership. 

 Principles of personnel, budget and program management. 

 Governmental functions and organization. 

 Principles and methods of supervision and management, including work planning, analysis, and organization; 

selection and evaluation of employees; and training. 

 HHS Departmental program goals, requirements, and operations. 

 Effective strategies for collecting information from multiple internal and external stakeholders. 

 County-supported software, including Word, Excel and Power Point 

 Some bodies of research around HHS programs, outcomes and effective service models.  

 Data analysis and statistical representation techniques 

 

Ability to: 

 Lead others through visioning, enabling others to act, and modeling the way.Select, train, supervise, and evaluate 

direct reports.  

 Plan, organize, assign, and review the work of staff, effectively counseling and taking appropriate disciplinary 

actions as necessary. 

 Analyze current trends, legislation, operating issues, data, and complex organizational, administrative and 

technical problems; develop and evaluate alternatives; and formulate and implement effective solutions in 

coordination with program teams.  

 Consult with and advise managers and supervisors on a wide variety of matters. 

 Understand, interpret, and apply laws, rules, and regulations as they relate to various areas of responsibility. 

 Effectively and succinctly communicate orally and in writing, using appropriate grammar, professional tone and 

format, including use of charts, graphs and other visual aids to convey ideas. 

 Drive alone and/or with others throughout California.   

 

 

 



MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS (EDUCATION AND/OR EXPERIENCE) 

PIQA MANAGER  (Supervisory Experience Desired): 

PATH I: Two (2) years of experience in a county system performing duties comparable to the Administrative 

Analyst class AND A Bachelor’s Degree majoring in Public Administration or Business Administration from an 

accredited college or university. 

OR 

 PATH II: Three (3) years of experience performing a broad range of professional, analytical and/or administrative 

duties in the areas of general administration, personnel, fiscal, staff development, or program analysis work AND  

A Bachelor’s Degree majoring in Public Administration or Business Administration from an accredited college or 

university. 

OR 

PATH III:  Five (5) years of experience performing a broad range of professional, analytical and/or administrative 

duties in the areas of general administration, personnel, fiscal, staff development, or program analysis work AND a 

Bachelor’s Degree from an accredited college or university.  

 

Note: Additional years of the required experience can substitute for up to two years of the required education on a 

year-for-year basis. 

Special requirements:  Must possess a valid operator’s license issued by the California Department of Motor Vehicles.  

Must successfully complete a pre-employment background investigation. 

 

SELECTION:  Selection procedures will be determined by the number and qualifications of applicants and may include a 

qualification screening, written examination, computer skills exercise, and oral examination. 

 

APPLICATION:  Applications will be accepted until 5:00 p.m., October 1, 2013 (postmarks not accepted).  Must apply 

on Inyo County application form.  A cover letter and/or resume will be accepted in addition to the application form but will 

not serve as a substitute for a completed application.  It is not acceptable to complete the application with statements 

like “See/Refer to Resume” or “See Attached”.  Incomplete applications will not be processed.  Applications may be 

faxed to meet the deadline—original application with original signature must be mailed. 
 

 THIS RECRUITMENT WILL ESTABLISH AN ELIGIBILITY LIST THAT MAY BE USED FOR ONE YEAR IN FILLING 

COUNTYWIDE VACANCIES THAT MAY OCCUR IN THIS JOB CLASSIFICATION AND SALARY RANGE. 

 

REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION FOR INDIVIDUALS WITH QUALIFYING DISABILITIES:  Inyo County will make 

reasonable efforts in the examination process on a case- basis to accommodate persons with disabilities.  If you have special needs, please 

contact (760) 878-0295 prior to the examination process. 

 

CITIZENSHIP/IMMIGRATION STATUS:  Inyo County hires only U.S. citizens and lawfully authorized non-citizens in accordance 

with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986. 

 

The County of Inyo has work sites located throughout Inyo County in the Owens Valley (Independence, Bishop, Lone Pine, Big Pine, and 

Olancha) and the Death Valley area (Death Valley, Shoshone, and Tecopa).  Positions are assigned to a work site based upon the needs of 

the County.  The Department Head and/or County Administration, on a case-by-case basis, may temporarily or permanently reassign 

positions to another work site as deemed necessary. 

 

 
 

 



County of Inyo

Public Works
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  August 20, 2019 

FROM:   
 
RE:  Authorize the hiring of one Office Technician I/II/III 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board find that, consistent with the adopted Authorized Position Review Policy: A) the availability of 
funding for one (1) Office Technician I/II/III exists in the Building & Maintenance Budget (011100) and Road 
Budget (034600), as certified by the Public Works Director and concurred with by the County Administrator and 
Auditor-Controller; B) where internal candidates may meet the qualifications for the position, the vacancy could 
possibly be filled through an internal recruitment, but an open recruitment is more appropriate to ensure qualified 
applicants apply; and C) approve the hiring of one (1) Office Technician I/II/III at Range 55 ($3,277 - $3,985), 
Range 59 ($3,597 - $4,371), or Range 63 ($3,944 - $4,799) depending on qualifications.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Public Works Department would like to hire one (1) Office Technician I/II/III.  This position is critical to the 
department operations and processes our internal operational billings for Road Department and Building & 
Maintenance.  This position is 14% funded in general fund budgets and 86% in non-general fund budgets and is 
part of our authorized strength in the FY 2019/2020 budget.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could choose not to approve the hiring of one (1) Office Technician I/II/III.  This is not recommended 
as it will have direct impacts on service delivery to the community and countywide departments.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Personnel
Auditor
 
FINANCING:
This position is budgeted to be spread to Building & Maintenance 14% in (011100) Budget and  86% Road in 
 (034600) Budget in the Salaries and Benefits Object Codes.



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 
ATTACHMENTS:



County of Inyo

Water Department
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  August 20, 2019 

FROM:   
 
RE:  
Requested Change in Authorized Strength
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) approve the modified job description for the Senior Scientist; and B) change the Authorized 
Strength in the Water Department by reclassifying one Associate Scientist,  Range 76 ($5,369-6,528) to Senior 
Scientist, Range 82 ($6,198 -$7,526)  and one Scientist, Range 80 ($5,900-$7,176) to Senior Scientist, Range 82 
($6,198 -$7,526).
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The science positions in the Water Department were consolidated into a single “scientist” career ladder in 2009. 
 The ladder consists of three positions, Associate Scientist (76), Scientist (80), and Senior Scientist (82).  In 
March 2019, the Board approved adjustments to the Associate Scientist and Scientist job descriptions to revise 
the qualifications and broaden the educational and employment requirements.  Specifically, minimum 
qualifications for the Scientist position were revised to align with the educational and work experience 
qualifications for the Associate Scientist and Senior Scientist positions in the ladder.  Following the adjustment, 
the three positions generally correspond with educational level (e.g. B.A/S, M.S., Ph.D.) with work experience 
allowed to substitute for advanced degrees for the higher classifications.  The Sr. Scientist job description, 
however, does not recognize requirements for professional registration required for practicing geologists or 
hydrogeologists nor elaborate on the specific additional supervisory and management duties required of Sr. 
Scientists in the Water Department.  
 
The scientists within the Water Department perform many of the key duties necessary to fulfill our monitoring and 
management responsibilities to implement Inyo County Water Policy, the Inyo-Los Angeles Long Term Water 
Agreement, and the Inyo County Groundwater Ordinance.  Many of the activities and analyses prepared by the 
Water Department hydrologist fall under the State Code regulating the practice of geology and geophysics in 
California (Title 16, Div. 29 §§ 3000-3067) similar to requirements for practicing engineers that have been 
established to protect the public. The licensing process for Professional Geologist and Professional Engineer are 
similar, and both are overseen by the Board of Professional Engineers, Land Surveyors and Geologists.  
Professional licensure requires minimum educational qualifications, work experience, and technical proficiency, 
and establishes standards for professional conduct and responsibilities.  
 
Inyo County Personnel Rules and Regulations (Section 4.4) permit reclassification when an employee within the 
Engineering series obtains their valid California registration.  In May 2019, Keith Rainville, Associate Scientist 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

specializing in hydrology for the Water Department, obtained a California Professional Geologist (PG) license.  
Mr. Rainville has worked as a hydrologist in the Water Department for more than 3 years under the supervision of 
a licensed geologist previously employed by the Department (Dr. Harrington) and has demonstrated the capacity 
to successfully perform the required skills and responsibilities of a Professional Geologist for the County.  His 
educational and work experience meet the minimum qualifications for a Senior Scientist (82).
 
Mr. Zach Nelson will assume several new responsibilities in the Department requiring specialized database 
management, geographical information systems (GIS), and remote sensing expertise and also will assume 
additional duties to coordinate and supervise permanent and field staff.  These additional duties were performed 
previously by an Associate Scientist position that was not filled following a recent retirement and by the Science 
Coordinator position which was recently removed from the Water Department authorized strength.  His 
educational and work experience meet the minimum qualifications for a Sr. Scientist and the additional duties are 
consistent with the responsibilities of that position.   
 

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose to not approve the revised Sr. Scientist job description and requested reclassifications; 
however; this is not recommended due to the need for a Professional Geologist within the Water Department, the 
need to assign certain duties previously performed by the Science Coordinator and an Associate Scientist, and 
the current challenges placed on the Department including the requirements of the Water Agreement as well as 
the California Sustainable Groundwater Management Act.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Personnel
 
FINANCING:
There is sufficient revenue to in the Water Projects Fund to support the requested reclassification. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Senior-Scientist-Assoc general job description - modified



ASSOCIATE SCIENTIST, SCIENTIST, OR SENIOR SCIENTIST –  
WATER

DEPARTMENT:    Water
LOCATION:           Countywide
SALARY:                Associate -   Range 076- $5264  $5525  $5808  $6097  $6400** 

Scientist -     Range 080- $5784  $6077  $6384  $6700  $7035** 
Senior -        Range 082- $6076  $6373  $6695  $7030  $7378**

**BENEFITS:  CalPERS Retirement System: Existing (“Classic”) CalPERS members as of January 1, 2013, (2% at 55) –  Inyo County 
pays employee contribution for current CalPERS members; New CalPERS members (2% at 62) will be required to pay at least 50% of 
normal cost.  Medical Plan – Inyo County pays a portion of employee and dependent monthly premium on PERS medical plans; 100% of 
employee and dependent monthly premium paid for dental and vision; $20,000 term life insurance policy on employee.   Vacation – 10 
days per year during the first three years; 15 days per year after three years; 1 additional day for each year of service aft er ten years to a 
maximum of 25 days per year.  Sick leave – 15 days per year.  Flex (personal days) – 5 days per fiscal year.  Paid holidays – 11 per year.

ESSENTIAL JOB DUTIES:   Direct research and monitoring activities related to scientific specialty; 
develop  and  lead  interdisciplinary  research  projects  to  improve  monitoring  and  management 
of projects to protect or enhance the environment; coordinate with senior scientific and management 
staff to determine and implement Owens Valley management goals and strategies; collect and 
analyze field and laboratory data; prepare written and oral technical reports; supervise and train 
department field staff; prepare staffing and budgets for activities and studies related to scientific 
specialty; participate in department program development; obtain funding for projects; manage grants 
and contracts related to monitoring and research; assist in preparation and management of 
departmental budgets; and represent the department before the Board of Supervisors, the Water 
Commission, the Standing Committee, the Technical Group, other governmental governing bodies and 
organizations, private organizations and the public.

In addition to the duties above, the Senior Scientist assumes greater responsibility for supervision of 
staff and development and management of departmental budgets, work plans, and grants.  The additional 
duties include assisting the Water Director: 1) identify and define the scientific priorities of the 
department consistent with the department’s mission;  2) coordinate work of technical staff and 
consultants to ensure that the department’s priorities are achieved; 3) evaluate need for scientific 
consultants and oversees management, or manages, work performed by such consultants or contractors; 
and  4) prepare of departmental budget related to scientific and monitoring activities and 5) prepare 
evaluations of scientific and technical staff as assigned by the Water Director.

EMPLOYMENT STANDARDS: 

Water Department Scientists may specialize in plant or wildlife ecology, hydrology, soil science, 
or related environmental fields.

Education/Employment:
Associate  Scientist  –  A  Bachelor’s degree  or  higher  in  plant or wildlife ecology, 
enviromentalenvironmental restoration, hydrology,  water  resources,  soil science, or  related 
environmental or earth science field.  

Scientist – A Master’s degree or higher in plant or wildlife ecology, environmental 
restoration, hydrology, water resources, soil science, or related environmental or earth science 
field, or a  Bachelor’s degree with three  years’ experience in specialty field or equivalent post-
graduate study. 



Senior Scientist – A Ph.D. degree in plant or wildlife ecology, environmental restoration, 
hydrology, water resources, soil science or related environmental or earth science field or a Master’s 
degree with three years’ experience in specialty field or equivalent post-graduate study beyond 
Master’s level  .knowledge of water issues and related environmental issues in Inyo County is desirable. 
A professional registration as a hydrogeologist or geologist recognized by the California Board of 
Professional Engineers, Land Surveyors and Geologists is required for Sr. Scientists in that discipline 
and can substitute for a Master’s degree.  

Knowledge of:  
Ecology.  Scientific research principles, methods, and procedures; concepts of botany, plant or wildlife 
ecology, environmental restoration or revegetation and related aspects of soils science and hydrology; 
multivariate statistics; vegetation mapping and sampling techniques; state and federal protocols relating 
to rare and endangered plants and wetlands; management of invasive species; Owens Valley flora, 
vegetation, geography, ecology and water issues; current vegetation, ecology and related literature; 
computer literacy; geographic information systems; principles and practices of supervision and project 
management.. 

Hydrology.  Scientific research principles, methods and procedures; analytical and numerical methods 
for evaluating hydrologic flows; geochemical processes and water quality standards; principles of 
ecohydrology and vegetation-groundwater interaction; local geology, hydrogeology and hydrology; 
California water laws and regulations and relevant ordinances and agreements; computer literacy; 
geographic information systems, groundwater modeling programs, data base software, computer 
programming languages, statistical analysis and graphical presentation of data; principles and practices 
of supervision and project management.

Soil Science.  Scientific research principles, methods and procedures; principles of soil physics and 
chemistry; methods of soil water measurement; and soil taxonomy; soil/groundwater/vegetation water 
relations; computer literacy; geographic information systems, data base software; principles and 
practices of supervision and project management.

Ability to:  Develop, administer, and lead research projects and/or monitoring programs with other 
Department staff; prepare research reports  and proposals; communicate effectively both orally and in 
writing; statistically analyze data; use field and laboratory equipment; operate computer equipment 
and software for data management and word processing; coordinate activities with other department 
staff; work independently as well as with other people; work outdoors in extreme weather conditions; 
obtain and administer grants; develop and manage budgets, consultant contracts, and grant contracts. 
Work outdoors, often in extremely adverse conditions; stand, walk, kneel, crouch, stoop, squat, twist, 
climb,  and  lift  up  to  50  pounds;  walk  up  to  five  miles  per  day  in  the  course  of  work;  work 
cooperatively with and supervise other people; travel throughout Inyo County and possibly outside 
Inyo County in performance of duties.

Special Requirements:  Must successfully complete a pre-employment background investigation and 
physical  examination.    Must  possess  or  obtain  by  appointment  date  a  valid  California  vehicle 
operator's license.

SELECTION:    Selection  procedures  will  be  determined  by  the  number  and  qualifications  of 
applicants and may include a qualification screening, written examination, computer skills exercise, 
and oral examination.

APPLICATION:    This recruitment will remain open until position has been filled.  Applications 



must be received in the Personnel Office, P.O. Box 249, Independence, CA  93526.    Must apply on 
Inyo County application form.  A cover letter and/or resume will be accepted in addition to the 
application form but will not serve as a substitute for a completed application.  It is not acceptable to 
complete the application with statements like “See/Refer to Resume” or “See Attached”. 
Incomplete applications will not be processed.

The County of Inyo has work sites located throughout the Owens Valley (Independence, Bishop, Lone Pine, Big Pine, and 
Olancha) and the Death Valley area (Death Valley, Tecopa, and Shoshone).  Positions are assigned to a work site based upon the 
needs of the County.  Positions may be temporarily or permanently reassigned to another work site as deemed necessary by the 
Department Head and/or County Administration.

REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION FOR INDIVIDUALS WITH QUALIFYING DISABILITIES:     Inyo County will make 
reasonable efforts in the examination process on a case-by-case basis to accommodate persons with disabilities.  If you have special 
needs, please contact (760) 878-0377 prior to the examination process.

CITIZENSHIP/IMMIGRATION STATUS:   Inyo County employs only U.S. citizens and lawfully authorized non-citizens in 
accordance with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986.



County of Inyo

Child Support Services
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  August 20, 2019 

FROM:  Susanne Rizo 
 
RE:  Amendment of the October 2, 2018 Board Minutes and Board Order regarding Lease Agreement between 
the County of Inyo and Mammoth Mall Owners LLC. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board amend Board Minutes and Board Order from October 2, 2018, correcting a clerical mistake.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
On October 2, 2018, your Board approved a Lease Agreement between the County of Inyo and Mammoth Mall 
Owners LLC, for the real property described as 126 Old Mammoth Rd., Suite 202, Mammoth Lakes, CA 93546. 
The Agreement provides for an initial term of three years commencing October 1, 2018 to September 30, 2021, 
with two one-year options to extend the lease with an annual allowable increase of three (3%) percent per option 
year.

Recently, it was identified that the Board Minutes and Order and supporting Agenda Request Form presented to 
your Board contained a typo stating that the contract included a (2%) percent increase for each option exercised. 
It is requested your Board amend the Board Minutes and Order from October 2, 2018, to reflect the terms of the 
contract. 

Because the Agreement entered into by your Board prevails by law, a correction of the Board Minutes and Order 
is perfunctory but will clarify records regarding your Board's action.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could choose to not amend the Order; however, this correction will clarify records for auditing 
purposes.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
N/A
 
FINANCING:
The funding for this item will be provided through the Child Support Agency Budget 022501, object code 5291, 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

and is provided for in the Board approved 2019-2020 budgets.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. 20181002CSS- MammothLeaseRatification























County of Inyo

Health & Human Services
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  August 20, 2019 

FROM:  Rhiannon Baker 
 
RE:  Approval of 2019 Medi-Cal Privacy and Security Agreement 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request that your Board approve the Data Privacy and Security Agreement (PSA) between the California 
Department of Social Services (CDSS) and the Inyo County Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) 
for the period of September 1, 2019 – September 1, 2022 and authorize the Director of HHS to sign and submit 
as instructed.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The purpose of this Medi-Cal Privacy and Security Agreement between DHCS and each County Welfare 
Department is to ensure the security and privacy of Medi-Cal Personally Identifiable Information (PII) contained in 
the Medi-Cal Eligibility Data System (MEDS), the Applicant Income and Eligibility Verification System (IEVS), and 
in data received from the Social Security Administration (SSA) and other sources. Because counties have access 
to SSA-provided information, SSA requires that DHCS enter into individual agreements with the counties to 
safeguard this information. All 58 County Welfare Departments are required to sign the Agreement to ensure the 
continued safe transmission of PII between the counties and DHCS.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
NA
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could choose not to approve the agreement. Failure to enter into the agreement could result in the 
Social Security Administration (SSA) revoking access to SSA information that HHS needs to make Medi-Cal 
Eligibility determinations, as well as determination of eligibility for other public assistance programs.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Information Services, Personnel
 
FINANCING:
There is no financing involved in this request.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. CDSS Privacy & Security Agreement



Agenda Request 
Page 2



v2019 06 24 
Page 1 of 24 

2019 PRIVACY AND SECURITY AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 

the California Department of Social Services and the 

County of __________________________________________________________,  

Department/Agency of ________________________________________________ 

 

PREAMBLE 

The California Department of Social Services (CDSS) and the  

County of ___________________________________________________________,  

Department/Agency of _________________________________________________  

enter into this Data Privacy and Security Agreement (Agreement) in order to ensure 

the privacy and security of Social Security Administration (SSA), Medi-Cal Eligibility 

Data System (MEDS) and Applicant Income and Eligibility Verification System (IEVS) 

Personally Identifiable Information (PII), covered by this Agreement and referred to 

hereinafter as PII, that the counties access through CDSS and the Department of 

Health Care Services (DHCS). This Agreement covers the following programs: 

• CalFresh;  

• California Food Assistance Program (CFAP);  

• California Work Opportunity and Responsibility to Kids Program (CalWORKs);  

• Cash Assistance Program for Immigrants (CAPI);  

• Entrant Cash Assistance (ECA)/Refugee Cash Assistance (RCA);  

• Foster Care (FC) (eligibility);  

• Kinship Guardianship Assistance Program (Kin-GAP) (eligibility);  

• Federal Guardianship Assistance Program (Fed-GAP) (eligibility);  

• General Assistance/General Relief (GA/GR); and 

• Trafficking and Crime Victims Assistance Program (TCVAP).  

The CDSS has an Inter-Agency Agreement (IAA) with DHCS that allows CDSS and 

local county agencies to access SSA and MEDS data in order to Assist in the 

Administration of the Program for the programs listed above. The IAA requires that 

CDSS may only share SSA and MEDS data if its contract with the entity with whom it 

intends to share the data reflects the entity's obligations under the IAA. 



v2019 06 24 
Page 2 of 24 

The County Department/Agency utilizes SSA and MEDS data in conjunction 

with other system data in order to Assist in the Administration of the Program for 

the programs listed above. 

This Agreement covers the 

County of ___________________________________________________________, 

Department/Agency of _________________________________________________ 

and its staff (County Workers), who access, use, or disclose PII covered by this 

Agreement, to assist in the administration of programs.   

DEFINITIONS 

For the purpose of this Agreement, the following terms mean: 

1. “Assist in the Administration of the Program” means performing administrative

functions on behalf of programs, such as determining eligibility for, or enrollment

in, and collecting PII for such purposes, to the extent such activities are authorized

by law.

2. “Breach” refers to actual loss, loss of control, compromise, unauthorized

disclosure, unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term

referring to situations where persons other than authorized users and for other

than authorized purposes have access or potential access to PII, whether

electronic, paper, verbal, or recorded.

3. “County Worker” means those county employees, contractors, subcontractors,

vendors and agents performing any functions for the county that require access to

and/or use of PII and that are authorized by the county to access and use PII.

4. "Pll" is personally identifiable information directly obtained in the course of

performing an administrative function through the MEDS or IEVS systems on

behalf of the programs, which can be used alone, or in conjunction with any other

reasonably available information to identify a specific individual. Pll includes any

information that can be used to search for or identify individuals, or can be used to

access their files, including, but not limited to name, social security number (SSN),

date and place of birth (DOB), mother’s maiden name, driver's license number, or

identification number. PII may also include any information that is linkable to an

individual, such as medical, educational, financial, and employment information.

Pll may be electronic, paper, verbal, or recorded and includes statements made

by, or attributed to, the individual.



v2019 06 24 
Page 3 of 24 

5. “Security Incident” means the attempted or successful unauthorized access, use, 

disclosure, modification, or destruction of PII, or interference with system 

operations in an information system which processes PII that is under the control 

of the county or county’s Statewide Automated Welfare System (SAWS) 

Consortium, or under the control of a contractor, subcontractor or vendor of the 

county, on behalf of the county. 

6. “Secure Areas” means any area where:  

a. County Workers assist in the administration of their program;  

b. County Workers use or disclose Pll; or 

c. PII is stored in paper or electronic format. 

7. “SSA-provided or verified data (SSA data)” means:  

a. Any information under the control of the Social Security Administration (SSA) 

provided to CDSS under the terms of an information exchange agreement with 

SSA (e.g., SSA provided date of death, SSA Title II or Title XVI benefit and 

eligibility data, or SSA citizenship verification); or;  

b. Any information provided to CDSS, including a source other than SSA, but in 

which CDSS attests that SSA verified it, or couples the information with data 

from SSA to certify the accuracy of it (e.g. SSN and associated SSA 

verification indicator displayed together on a screen, file, or report, or DOB and 

associated SSA verification indicator displayed together on a screen, file, or 

report). 

For a more detailed definition of “SSA data”, please refer to Section 7 of the 

“Electronic Information Exchange Security Requirements and Procedures for 

State and Local Agencies Exchanging Electronic Information with SSA” document, 

an attachment of Exhibit A. 



v2019 06 24 
Page 4 of 24 

AGREEMENTS 

CDSS and County Department/Agency mutually agree as follows: 

I. PRIVACY AND CONFIDENTIALITY 

A. County Workers may use or disclose PII only as permitted in this 

Agreement and only to assist in the administration of programs in 

accordance with 45 CFR § 205.50 et seq. and Welfare and Institutions 

Code section 10850 or as authorized or required by law. Disclosures 

required by law or that are made with the explicit written authorization of 

the client are allowable. Any other use or disclosure of Pll requires the 

express approval in writing of CDSS. No County Worker shall duplicate, 

disseminate or disclose Pll except as allowed in this Agreement.  

B. Pursuant to this Agreement, County Workers may only use PII to assist in 

administering their respective programs.  

C. Access to Pll shall be restricted to County Workers who need to perform 

their official duties to assist in the administration of their respective 

programs. 

D. County Workers who access, disclose or use Pll in a manner or for a 

purpose not authorized by this Agreement may be subject to civil and 

criminal sanctions contained in applicable federal and state statutes. 

II. PERSONNEL CONTROLS 

The County Department/Agency agrees to advise County Workers who have 

access to Pll, of the confidentiality of the information, the safeguards required 

to protect the information, and the civil and criminal sanctions for non-

compliance contained in applicable federal and state laws. For that purpose, 

the County Department/Agency shall implement the following personnel 

controls: 

A. Employee Training.  Train and use reasonable measures to ensure 

compliance with the requirements of this Agreement by County Workers, 

including, but not limited to: 

1. Provide initial privacy and security awareness training to each new 

County Worker within thirty (30) days of employment; 

2. Thereafter, provide annual refresher training or reminders of the privacy 

and security safeguards in this Agreement to all County Workers.  

Three (3) or more security reminders per year are recommended; 



v2019 06 24 
Page 5 of 24 

3. Maintain records indicating each County Worker’s name and the date 

on which the privacy and security awareness training was completed; 

and 

4. Retain training records for a period of three (3) years after completion of 

the training. 

B. Employee Discipline.   

1. Provide documented sanction policies and procedures for County 

Workers who fail to comply with privacy policies and procedures or any 

provisions of these requirements.  

2. Sanction policies and procedures shall include termination of 

employment when appropriate. 

C. Confidentiality Statement.  Ensure that all County Workers sign a 

confidentiality statement. The statement shall be signed by County Workers 

prior to accessing PII and annually thereafter. Signatures may be physical 

or electronic. The signed statement shall be retained for a period of three 

(3) years, or five (5) years if the signed statement is being used to comply 

with Section 5.10 of the SSA’s “Electronic Information Exchange Security 

Requirements and Procedures for State and Local Agencies Exchanging 

Electronic Information with SSA” document, an attachment of Exhibit A. 

The statement shall include, at a minimum, a description of the following:  

1. General Use of the PII; 

2. Security and Privacy Safeguards for the PII; 

3. Unacceptable Use of the PII; and  

4. Enforcement Policies.   

D. Background Screening. 

1. Conduct a background screening of a County Worker before they may 

access PII.   

2. The background screening should be commensurate with the risk and 

magnitude of harm the employee could cause. More thorough screening 

shall be done for those employees who are authorized to bypass 

significant technical and operational security controls.   



v2019 06 24 
Page 6 of 24 

3. The County Department/Agency shall retain each County Worker’s 

background screening documentation for a period of three (3) years 

following conclusion of employment relationship.  

III. MANAGEMENT OVERSIGHT AND MONITORING 

To ensure compliance with the privacy and security safeguards in this 

Agreement the County Department/Agency shall perform the following: 

A. Conduct periodic privacy and security reviews of work activity by County 

Workers, including random sampling of work product. Examples include, 

but are not limited to, access to case files or other activities related to the 

handling of PII. 

B. The periodic privacy and security reviews shall be performed or overseen 

by management level personnel who are knowledgeable and experienced 

in the areas of privacy and information security in the administration of their 

program, and the use or disclosure of PII. 

IV. INFORMATION SECURITY AND PRIVACY STAFFING 

The County Department/Agency agrees to: 

A. Designate information security and privacy officials who are accountable for 

compliance with these and all other applicable requirements stated in this 

Agreement. 

B. Provide CDSS with applicable contact information for these designated 

individuals by emailing CDSS at cdsspsa@dss.ca.gov. Any changes to this 

information should be reported to CDSS within ten (10) days. 

C. Assign County Workers to be responsible for administration and monitoring 

of all security related controls stated in this Agreement. 

V. PHYSICAL SECURITY 

The County Department/Agency shall ensure Pll is used and stored in an area 

that is physically safe from access by unauthorized persons at all times. The 

County Department/Agency agrees to safeguard Pll from loss, theft, or 

inadvertent disclosure and, therefore, agrees to: 

A. Secure all areas of the County Department/Agency facilities where County 

Workers assist in the administration of their program and use, disclose, or 

store Pll.   

B. These areas shall be restricted to only allow access to authorized 

individuals by using one or more of the following: 

mailto:cdsspsa@dss.ca.gov


v2019 06 24 
Page 7 of 24 

1. Properly coded key cards 

2. Authorized door keys 

3. Official identification 

C. Issue identification badges to County Workers. 

D. Require County Workers to wear these badges where Pll is used, 

disclosed, or stored. 

E. Ensure each physical location, where PII is used, disclosed, or stored, has 

procedures and controls that ensure an individual who is terminated from 

access to the facility is promptly escorted from the facility by an authorized 

employee and access is revoked. 

F. Ensure there are security guards or a monitored alarm system at all times 

at the County Department/Agency facilities and leased facilities where five 

hundred (500) or more individually identifiable records of Pll is used, 

disclosed, or stored. Video surveillance systems are recommended. 

G. Ensure data centers with servers, data storage devices, and/or critical 

network infrastructure involved in the use, storage, and/or processing of PII 

have perimeter security and physical access controls that limit access to 

only authorized County Workers. Visitors to the data center area shall be 

escorted at all times by authorized County Workers. 

H. Store paper records with PII in locked spaces, such as locked file cabinets, 

locked file rooms, locked desks, or locked offices in facilities which are 

multi-use meaning that there are County Department/Agency and 

non-County Department/Agency functions in one building in work areas 

that are not securely segregated from each other. It is recommended that 

all PII be locked up when unattended at any time, not just within multi-use 

facilities. 

I. The County Department/Agency shall have policies based on applicable 

factors that include, at a minimum, a description of the circumstances 

under which the County Workers can transport PII, as well as the physical 

security requirements during transport. A County Department/Agency that 

chooses to permit its County Workers to leave records unattended in 

vehicles shall include provisions in its policies to ensure that the PII is 

stored in a non-visible area such as a trunk, that the vehicle is locked, and 

that under no circumstances permit PII be left unattended in a vehicle 

overnight or for other extended periods of time. 



v2019 06 24 
Page 8 of 24 

J. The County Department/Agency shall have policies that indicate County 

Workers are not to leave records with PII unattended at any time in 

airplanes, buses, trains, etc., inclusive of baggage areas. This should be 

included in training due to the nature of the risk. 

K. Use all reasonable measures to prevent non-authorized personnel and 

visitors from having access to, control of, or viewing PII. 

VI. TECHNICAL SECURITY CONTROLS 

A. Workstation/Laptop Encryption.  All workstations and laptops, which use, 

store and/or process PII, shall be encrypted using a FIPS 140-2 certified 

algorithm 128 bit or higher, such as Advanced Encryption Standard (AES).  

The encryption solution shall be full disk. It is encouraged, when available 

and when feasible, that the encryption be 256 bit. 

B. Server Security.  Servers containing unencrypted PII shall have sufficient 

administrative, physical, and technical controls in place to protect that data, 

based upon a risk assessment/system security review. It is recommended 

to follow the guidelines documented in the latest revision of the National 

Institute of Standards and Technology (NIST) Special Publication (SP) 

800-53, Security and Privacy Controls for Federal Information Systems and 

Organizations.  

C. Minimum Necessary.  Only the minimum necessary amount of PII 

required to perform required business functions may be accessed, copied, 

downloaded, or exported. 

D. Mobile Device and Removable Media.  All electronic files, which contain 

PII, shall be encrypted when stored on any mobile device or removable 

media (i.e. USB drives, CD/DVD, smartphones, tablets, backup tapes etc.).  

Encryption shall be a FIPS 140-2 certified algorithm 128 bit or higher, such 

as AES.  It is encouraged, when available and when feasible, that the 

encryption be 256 bit. 

E. Antivirus Software.  All workstations, laptops and other systems, which 

process and/or store PII, shall install and actively use an antivirus software 

solution. Antivirus software should have automatic updates for definitions 

scheduled at least daily. 

F. Patch Management.   

1. All workstations, laptops and other systems, which process and/or store 

PII, shall have critical security patches applied, with system reboot if 

necessary.   



v2019 06 24 
Page 9 of 24 

2. There shall be a documented patch management process that 

determines installation timeframe based on risk assessment and vendor 

recommendations.   

3. At a maximum, all applicable patches deemed as critical shall be 

installed within thirty (30) days of vendor release. It is recommended 

that critical patches which are high risk be installed within seven (7) 

days. 

4. Applications and systems that cannot be patched within this time frame, 

due to significant operational reasons, shall have compensatory 

controls implemented to minimize risk. 

G. User IDs and Password Controls.   

1. All users shall be issued a unique user name for accessing PII.   

2. Username shall be promptly disabled, deleted, or the password 

changed within, at most, twenty-four (24) hours of the transfer or 

termination of an employee. Note:  Twenty-four (24) hours is defined as 

one (1) working day.  

3. Passwords are not to be shared.   

4. Passwords shall be at least eight (8) characters.  

5. Passwords shall be a non-dictionary word.  

6. Passwords shall not be stored in readable format on the computer or 

server.   

7. Passwords shall be changed every ninety (90) days or less. It is 

recommended that passwords be required to be changed every sixty 

(60) days or less. Non-expiring passwords are permitted when in full 

compliance with NIST SP 800-63B Authenticator Assurance Level 

(AAL) 2. 

8. Passwords shall be changed if revealed or compromised.   



v2019 06 24 
Page 10 of 24 

9. Passwords shall be composed of characters from at least three (3) of 

the four (4) of the following groups from the standard keyboard:  

a. Upper case letters (A-Z) 

b. Lower case letters (a-z) 

c. Arabic numerals (0-9) 

d. Special characters (!,@,#, etc.) 

H. User Access.  In conjunction with CDSS and DHCS, County 

Department/Agency management should exercise control and oversight 

over the authorization of individual user access to SSA data via, MEDS, 

IEVS, and over the process of issuing and maintaining access control 

numbers, IDs, and passwords.  

I. Data Destruction.  When no longer needed, all PII shall be cleared, 

purged, or destroyed consistent with NIST SP 800-88, Guidelines for Media 

Sanitization, such that the PII cannot be retrieved. 

J. System Timeout.  The systems providing access to PII shall provide an 

automatic timeout, requiring re-authentication of the user session after no 

more than twenty (20) minutes of inactivity. 

K. Warning Banners.  The systems providing access to PII shall display a 

warning banner stating, at a minimum: 

1. Data is confidential; 

2. Systems are logged; 

3. System use is for business purposes only, by authorized users; and 

4. Users shall log off the system immediately if they do not agree with 

these requirements. 

L. System Logging.   

1. The systems that provide access to PII shall maintain an automated 

audit trail that can identify the user or system process which initiates a 

request for PII, or alters PII.  



v2019 06 24 
Page 11 of 24 

2. The audit trail shall: 

a. Be date and time stamped;  

b. Log both successful and failed accesses;  

c. Be read-access only; and  

d. Be restricted to authorized users of the audit trail.   

3. If PII is stored in a database, database logging functionality shall be 

enabled.  

4. Audit trail data shall be archived for at least three (3) years from the 

occurrence. 

M. Access Controls.  The system providing access to PII shall use 

role-based access controls for all user authentications, enforcing the 

principle of least privilege. 

N. Transmission Encryption.   

1. All data transmissions of PII outside of a secure internal network shall 

be encrypted using a Federal Information Processing Standard (FIPS) 

140-2 certified algorithm that is 128 bit or higher, such as Advanced 

Encryption Standard (AES) or Transport Layer Security (TLS). It is 

encouraged, when available and when feasible, that 256-bit encryption 

be used. 

2. Encryption can be end to end at the network level, or the data files 

containing PII can be encrypted.   

3. This requirement pertains to any type of PII in motion such as website 

access, file transfer, and email. 

O. Intrusion Prevention.  All systems involved in accessing, storing, 

transporting, and protecting PII, which are accessible through the Internet, 

shall be protected by an intrusion detection and prevention solution. 

VII. AUDIT CONTROLS 

A. System Security Review.   

1. The County Department/Agency shall ensure audit control mechanisms 

are in place.   



v2019 06 24 
Page 12 of 24 

2. All systems processing and/or storing PII shall have at least an annual 

system risk assessment/security review that ensures administrative, 

physical, and technical controls are functioning effectively and provide 

an adequate level of protection.  

3. Reviews should include vulnerability scanning tools. 

B. Log Reviews.  All systems processing and/or storing PII shall have a 

process or automated procedure in place to review system logs for 

unauthorized access. 

C. Change Control.  All systems processing and/or storing PII shall have a 

documented change control process that ensures separation of duties and 

protects the confidentiality, integrity and availability of data. 

D. Anomalies.  When the County Department/Agency or DHCS suspects 

MEDS usage anomalies, the County Department/Agency will work with 

DHCS to investigate the anomalies and report conclusions of such 

investigations and remediation to CDSS. 

VIII. BUSINESS CONTINUITY / DISASTER RECOVERY CONTROLS 

A. Emergency Mode Operation Plan.  The County Department/Agency shall 

establish a documented plan to enable continuation of critical business 

processes and protection of the security of PII kept in an electronic format 

in the event of an emergency. Emergency means any circumstance or 

situation that causes normal computer operations to become unavailable 

for use in performing the work required under this Agreement for more than 

twenty-four (24) hours. It is recommended that County Department/Agency 

conduct periodic disaster recovery testing, including connectivity exercises 

conducted with DHCS and CDSS, if requested. 

B. Data Centers.  Data centers with servers, data storage devices, and critical 

network infrastructure involved in the use, storage and/or processing of PII, 

shall include environmental protection such as cooling, power, and fire 

prevention, detection, and suppression; and appropriate protection from 

other threats, including but not limited to flood, earthquake, and terrorism. 

C. Data Backup and Recovery Plan. 

1. The County Department/Agency shall have established documented 

procedures to backup PII to maintain retrievable exact copies of PII.   

2. The documented backup procedures shall contain a schedule which 

includes incremental and full backups.  



v2019 06 24 
Page 13 of 24 

3. The procedures shall include storing backups containing PII offsite. 

4. The procedures shall ensure an inventory of backup media. 

5. The County Department/Agency shall have established documented 

procedures to recover PII data.   

6. The documented recovery procedures shall include an estimate of the 

amount of time needed to restore the PII data. 

7. It is recommended that the County Department/Agency periodically test 

the data recovery process. 

IX. PAPER DOCUMENT CONTROLS 

A. Supervision of Data.  The PII in paper form shall not be left unattended at 

any time, unless it is locked in a file cabinet, file room, desk or office.  

Unattended means that information may be observed by an individual not 

authorized to access the information.   

B. Data in Vehicles.  The County Department/Agency shall have policies that 

include, based on applicable risk factors, a description of the circumstances 

under which the County Workers can transport PII, as well as the physical 

security requirements during transport. A County Department/Agency that 

chooses to permit its County Workers to leave records unattended in 

vehicles, it shall include provisions in its policies to provide that the PII is 

stored in a non-visible area such as a trunk, that the vehicle is locked, and 

that under no circumstances permit PII to be left unattended in a vehicle 

overnight or for other extended periods of time. 

C. Public Modes of Transportation.  The PII in paper form shall not be left 

unattended at any time in airplanes, buses, trains, etc., inclusive of 

baggage areas. This should be included in training due to the nature of the 

risk. 

D. Escorting Visitors.  Visitors to areas where PII is contained shall be 

escorted, and PII shall be kept out of sight while visitors are in the area. 

E. Confidential Destruction.  PII shall be disposed of through confidential 

means, such as cross cut shredding or pulverizing. 

F. Removal of Data.  The PII shall not be removed from the premises of 

County Department/Agency except for identified routine business purposes 

or with express written permission of CDSS. 



v2019 06 24 
Page 14 of 24 

G. Faxing. 

1. Faxes containing PII shall not be left unattended and fax machines shall 

be in secure areas.   

2. Faxes shall contain a confidentiality statement notifying persons 

receiving faxes in error to destroy them and notify the sender. 

3. Fax numbers shall be verified with the intended recipient before sending 

the fax. 

H. Mailing. 

1. Mailings containing PII shall be sealed and secured from damage or 

inappropriate viewing of PII to the extent possible.  

2. Mailings that include five hundred (500) or more individually identifiable 

records containing PII in a single package shall be sent using a tracked 

mailing method that includes verification of delivery and receipt, unless 

the County Department/Agency obtains prior written permission from 

CDSS to use another method.  

X. NOTIFICATION AND INVESTIGATION OF BREACHES AND SECURITY 

INCIDENTS 

During the term of this Agreement, the County Department/Agency agrees to 

implement reasonable systems for the discovery and prompt reporting of any 

breach or security incident, and to take the following steps: 

A. Initial Notice to DHCS: 

The County Department/Agency will provide initial notice to DHCS by 

email, or alternatively, by telephone if email is unavailable, of any 

suspected security incident, intrusion, or unauthorized access, use, or 

disclosure of PII or potential loss of PII with a copy to CDSS. The DHCS is 

acting on behalf of CDSS for purposes of receiving reports of privacy and 

information security incidents and breaches. The County 

Department/Agency agrees to perform the following incident reporting to 

DHCS: 

1. If a suspected security incident involves PII provided or verified by SSA, 

the County Department/Agency shall immediately notify DHCS upon 

discovery. For more information on SSA data, please see the Definition 

section of this Agreement. 



v2019 06 24 
Page 15 of 24 

2. If a suspected security incident does not involve PII provided or verified 

by SSA, the County Department/Agency shall notify DHCS within one 

(1) working day of discovery.   

If it is unclear if the security incident involves SSA data, the County 

Department/Agency shall immediately report the incident upon discovery.  

A County Department/Agency shall notify DHCS of all personal information, 

as defined by California Civil Code Section 1798.3(a), that may have been 

accessed, used, or disclosed in any suspected security incident or breach, 

including but not limited to case numbers. 

Notice shall be made using the DHCS Privacy Incident Report (PIR) form, 

including all information known at the time. The County Department/Agency  

shall use the most current version of this form, which is available on the 

DHCS Privacy Office website at:  

http://www.dhcs.ca.gov/formsandpubs/laws/priv/Pages/CountiesOnly.aspx. 

All PIRs and supporting documentation are to be submitted to DHCS via 

email using the “DHCS Breach and Security Incidents Reporting” contact 

information found below in Subsection F. 

A breach shall be treated as discovered by the County Department/Agency 

as of the first day on which the breach is known, or by exercising 

reasonable diligence would have been known, to any person (other than 

the person committing the breach), who is an employee, officer or other 

agent of the County Department/Agency.   

Upon discovery of a breach, security incident, intrusion, or unauthorized 

access, use, or disclosure of PII, the County Department/Agency shall take: 

1. Prompt action to mitigate any risks or damages involved with the 

occurrence and to protect the operating environment; and 

2. Any action pertaining to such occurrence required by applicable Federal 

and State laws and regulations. 

B. Investigation and Investigative Report.  The County Department/Agency 

shall immediately investigate breaches and security incidents involving PII. 

If the initial PIR was submitted incomplete and if new or updated 

information is available, submit an updated PIR to DHCS within seventy-

two (72) hours of the discovery. The updated PIR shall include any other 

applicable information related to the breach or security incident known at 

that time. 

http://www.dhcs.ca.gov/formsandpubs/laws/priv/Pages/CountiesOnly.aspx


v2019 06 24 
Page 16 of 24 

C. Complete Report.  If all of the required information was not included in 

either the initial report or the investigation PIR submission, then a separate 

complete report shall be submitted within ten working days of the 

discovery. The Complete Report of the investigation shall include an 

assessment of all known factors relevant to the determination of whether a 

breach occurred under applicable provisions of the Health Insurance 

Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA), the Health Information 

Technology for Economic and Clinical Health (HITECH) Act, the 

Information Protection Act, or other applicable law. The report shall also 

include a Corrective Action Plan (CAP) that shall include, at minimum, 

detailed information regarding the mitigation measures taken to halt and/or 

contain the improper use or disclosure. 

If DHCS requests additional information related to the incident, the County 

Department/Agency shall make reasonable efforts to provide DHCS with 

such information. If necessary, the County Department/Agency shall submit 

an updated PIR with revisions and/or additional information after the 

Completed Report has been provided. DHCS will review and determine 

whether a breach occurred and whether individual notification is required. 

DHCS will maintain the final decision making over a breach determination. 

D. Notification of Individuals.  When applicable state or federal law requires 

notification to individuals of a breach or unauthorized disclosure of their PII, 

the County Department/Agency shall give the notice, subject to the 

following provisions: 

1. If the cause of the breach is attributable to the County 

Department/Agency or its subcontractors, agents or vendors, the 

County Department/Agency shall pay any costs of such notifications, 

as well as any and all costs associated with the breach. If the cause 

of the breach is attributable to CDSS, CDSS shall pay any costs 

associated with such notifications, as well as any costs associated 

with the breach. If there is any question as to whether CDSS or the 

County Department/Agency is responsible for the breach, CDSS and 

the County Department/Agency shall jointly determine responsibility 

for purposes of allocating the costs;  



v2019 06 24 
Page 17 of 24 

2. All notifications (regardless of breach status) regarding beneficiaries’ 

PII shall comply with the requirements set forth in Section 1798.29 of 

the California Civil Code and Section 17932 of Title 42 of United 

States Code, inclusive of its implementing regulations, including but 

not limited to the requirement that the notifications be made without 

unreasonable delay and in no event, later than sixty (60) calendar 

days from discovery;  

3. The CDSS Information Security and Privacy Bureau shall approve 

the time, manner and content of any such notifications and their 

review and approval shall be obtained before notifications are made. 

If notifications are distributed without CDSS review and approval, 

secondary follow-up notifications may be required; and 

4. CDSS may elect to assume responsibility for such notification from 

the County Department/Agency. 

E. Responsibility for Reporting of Breaches when Required by State or 

Federal Law.  If the cause of a breach is attributable to the County 

Department/Agency or its agents, subcontractors or vendors, the County 

Department/Agency is responsible for all required reporting of the breach.  

If the cause of the breach is attributable to CDSS, CDSS is responsible for 

all required reporting of the breach. When applicable law requires the 

breach be reported to a federal or state agency or that notice be given to 

media outlets, DHCS (if the breach involves MEDS or SSA data), CDSS, 

and the County Department/Agency shall coordinate to ensure such 

reporting is in compliance with applicable law and to prevent duplicate 

reporting, and to jointly determine responsibility for purposes of allocating 

the costs of such reports, if any. 

F. CDSS and DHCS Contact Information.  The County Department/Agency 

shall utilize the below contact information to direct all notifications of breach 

and security incidents to CDSS and DHCS. CDSS reserves the right to 

make changes to the contact information by giving written notice to the 

County Department/Agency. Said changes shall not require an amendment 

to this Agreement or any other agreement into which it is incorporated. 



v2019 06 24 
Page 18 of 24 

CDSS 
Information Security 

and 
Privacy Bureau 

DHCS 
Breach and Security Incident 

Reporting 

California Department of Social Services 
Information Security and Privacy Bureau 
744 P Street, MS 9-9-70 
Sacramento, CA 95814-6413 
 
 
Email:  iso@dss.ca.gov 
 
Telephone:  (916) 651-5558 
 
The preferred method of communication 
is email, when available. Do not include 
any PII unless requested by CDSS. 

Department of Health Care Services 
Office of HIPAA Compliance 
1501 Capitol Avenue, MS 4721 
P.O. Box 997413 
Sacramento, CA 95899-7413 
 
Email:  incidents@dhcs.ca.gov 
 
Telephone:  (866) 866-0602 
 
The preferred method of communication 
is email, when available. Do not include 
any Medi-Cal PII unless requested by 
DHCS. 

 

XI. COMPLIANCE WITH SSA AGREEMENT 

The County Department/Agency agrees to comply with applicable privacy and 

security requirements in the Computer Matching and Privacy Protection Act 

Agreement (CMPPA) between the SSA and the California Health and Human 

Services Agency (CHHS), in the Information Exchange Agreement (IEA) 

between SSA and CDSS, and in the Electronic Information Exchange Security 

Requirements and Procedures for State and Local Agencies Exchanging 

Electronic Information with SSA (TSSR), which are hereby incorporated into 

this Agreement (Exhibit A) and available upon request.   

If there is any conflict between a privacy and security standard in the CMPPA, 

IEA or TSSR, and a standard in this Agreement, the most stringent standard 

shall apply. The most stringent standard means the standard which provides 

the greatest protection to PII. 

mailto:iso@dss.ca.gov
mailto:incidents@dhcs.ca.gov


v2019 06 24 
Page 19 of 24 

If SSA changes the terms of its agreement(s) with CDSS, CDSS will, as soon 

as reasonably possible after receipt, supply copies to the County Welfare 

Directors Association (CWDA) as well as the proposed target date for 

compliance. For a period of thirty (30) days, CDSS will accept input from 

CWDA on the proposed target date and make adjustments, if appropriate.  

After the thirty (30) day period, CDSS will submit the proposed target date to 

SSA, which will be subject to adjustment by SSA. Once a target date for 

compliance is determined by SSA, CDSS will supply copies of the changed 

agreement to the CWDA and the County Department/Agency, along with the 

compliance date expected by SSA. If the County Department/Agency is not 

able to meet the SSA compliance date, it shall submit a CAP to CDSS for 

review and approval at least thirty (30) days prior to the SSA compliance date.  

Any potential County Department/Agency resource issues may be discussed 

with CDSS through a collaborative process in developing their CAP. 

A copy of Exhibit A can be requested by authorized County 

Department/Agency individuals by emailing CDSS at cdsspsa@dss.ca.gov. 

XII. COMPLIANCE WITH DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY 

AGREEMENT 

The County Department/Agency agrees to comply with substantive privacy 

and security requirements in the Computer Matching Agreement (CMA) 

between the Department/Agency of Homeland Security, United States 

Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS-USCIS) and CDSS, which is 

hereby incorporated into this Agreement (Exhibit B) and available upon 

request. If there is any conflict between a privacy and security standard in the 

CMA and a standard in this Agreement, the most stringent standard shall 

apply. The most stringent standard means the standard which provides the 

greatest protection to PII. 

mailto:cdsspsa@dss.ca.gov


v2019 06 24 
Page 20 of 24 

If DHS-USCIS changes the terms of its agreement(s) with CDSS, CDSS will, 

as soon as reasonably possible after receipt, supply copies to CWDA as well 

as the CDSS proposed target date for compliance. For a period of thirty (30) 

days, CDSS will accept input from CWDA on the proposed target date and 

make adjustments, if appropriate. After the thirty (30) day period, CDSS will 

submit the proposed target date to DHS-USCIS, which will be subject to 

adjustment by DHS-USCIS. Once a target date for compliance is determined 

by DHS-USCIS, CDSS will supply copies of the changed agreement to the 

CWDA and the County Department/Agency, along with the compliance date 

expected by DHS-USCIS. If a County Department/Agency is not able to meet 

the DHS-USCIS compliance date, it shall submit a CAP to CDSS for review 

and approval at least thirty (30) days prior to the DHS-USCIS compliance date.  

Any potential County Department/Agency resource issues may be discussed 

with CDSS through a collaborative process in developing their CAP. 

A copy of Exhibit B can be requested by authorized County 

Department/Agency individuals by emailing CDSS at cdsspsa@dss.ca.gov. 

 

XIII. COUNTY DEPARTMENT/AGENCY AGENTS,  SUBCONTRACTORS, AND 

VENDORS 

The County Department/Agency agrees to enter into written agreements with 
all agents, subcontractors, and vendors that have access to County 
Department/Agency PII. These agreements will impose, at a minimum, the 
same restrictions and conditions that apply to the County Department/Agency 
with respect to PII upon such agents, subcontractors, and vendors. These 
shall include, at a minimum, (1) restrictions on disclosure of PII, (2) conditions 
regarding the use of appropriate administrative, physical, and technical 
safeguards to protect PII, and, where relevant, (3) the requirement that any 
breach, security incident, intrusion, or unauthorized access, use, or disclosure 
of PII be reported to the County Department/Agency. If the agents, 
subcontractors, and vendors of County Department/Agency access data 
provided to DHCS and/or CDSS by SSA or DHS-USCIS, the County 
Department/Agency shall also incorporate the Agreement’s Exhibits into each 
subcontract or subaward with agents, subcontractors, and vendors. 
 
County Department/Agency(s) who would like assistance or guidance with this 

requirement are encouraged to contact CDSS via email at 

cdsspsa@dss.ca.gov. 

 
 

mailto:cdsspsa@dss.ca.gov
mailto:cdsspsa@dss.ca.gov


v2019 06 24 
Page 21 of 24 

XIV. ASSESSMENTS AND REVIEWS 

In order to enforce this Agreement and ensure compliance with its provisions 

and Exhibits, the County Department/Agency agrees to assist CDSS or DHCS 

(on behalf of CDSS) in performing compliance assessments. These 

assessments may involve compliance review questionnaires, and/or review of 

the facilities, systems, books, and records of the County Department/Agency, 

with reasonable notice from CDSS or DHCS. Such reviews shall be scheduled 

at times that take into account the operational and staffing demands. The 

County Department/Agency agrees to promptly remedy all violations of any 

provision of this Agreement and certify the same to CDSS in writing, or to enter 

into a written CAP with CDSS containing deadlines for achieving compliance 

with specific provisions of this Agreement. 

XV. ASSISTANCE IN LITIGATION OR ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEEDINGS 

In the event of litigation or administrative proceedings involving CDSS based 

upon claimed violations by the County Department/Agency of the privacy or 

security of Pll, or federal or state laws or agreements concerning privacy or 

security of Pll, the County Department/Agency shall make all reasonable effort 

to make itself and County Workers assisting in the administration of their 

program and using or disclosing Pll available to CDSS at no cost to CDSS to 

testify as witnesses. The CDSS shall also make all reasonable efforts to make 

itself and any subcontractors, agents, and employees available to the County 

Department/Agency at no cost to the County Department/Agency to testify as 

witnesses, in the event of litigation or administrative proceedings involving the 

County Department/Agency based upon claimed violations by CDSS of the 

privacy or security of Pll, or state or federal laws or agreements concerning 

privacy or security of PII. 

XVI. AMENDMENT OF AGREEMENT 

The CDSS and the County Department/Agency acknowledge that federal and 

state laws relating to data security and privacy are rapidly evolving and that an 

amendment to this Agreement may be required to ensure compliance with all 

data security and privacy procedures. Upon request by CDSS, the County 

Department/Agency agrees to promptly enter into negotiations with CDSS 

concerning an amendment to this Agreement as may be needed by 

developments in federal and state laws and regulations. In addition to any 

other lawful remedy, CDSS may terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) 

days written notice if the County Department/Agency does not promptly agree 

to enter into negotiations to amend this Agreement when requested to do so, 

or does not enter into an amendment that CDSS deems necessary. 



v2019 06 24 
Page 22 of 24 

Each amendment shall be properly identified as Agreement No., Amendment 

No. (A-1, A-2, A-3, etc.) to identify the applicable changes to this Agreement, 

and be effective upon execution by the parties. 

XVII. TERM OF AGREEMENT  

The term of this agreement shall begin upon signature and approval of CDSS.  

XVIII. TERMINATION  

A. This Agreement shall terminate on September 1, 2022, regardless of the 

date the Agreement is executed by the parties. The parties can agree in 

writing to extend the term of the Agreement; through an executed written 

amendment. County Department/Agency requests for an extension shall be 

justified and approved by CDSS and limited to no more than a six (6) 

month extension.  

B. Survival:  All provisions of this Agreement that provide restrictions on 

disclosures of PII and that provide administrative, technical, and physical 

safeguards for the PII in the County Department/Agency’s possession shall 

continue in effect beyond the termination or expiration of this Agreement, 

and shall continue until the PII is destroyed or returned to CDSS. 

XIX. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE 

Upon CDSS’ knowledge of a material breach or violation of this Agreement by 

the County Department/Agency, CDSS may provide an opportunity for the 

County Department/Agency to cure the breach or end the violation and may 

terminate this Agreement if the County Department/Agency does not cure the 

breach or end the violation within the time specified by CDSS. This Agreement 

may be terminated immediately by CDSS if the County Department/Agency 

has breached a material term and CDSS determines, in its sole discretion, that 

cure is not possible or available under the circumstances. Upon termination of 

this Agreement, the County Department/Agency shall return or destroy all PII 

in accordance with Section VI, above. The provisions of this Agreement 

governing the privacy and security of the PII shall remain in effect until all PII is 

returned or destroyed and CDSS receives a certificate of destruction. 

  



v2019 06 24 
Page 23 of 24 

XX. SIGNATORIES 

The signatories below warrant and represent that they have the competent 

authority on behalf of their respective agencies to enter into the obligations set 

forth in this Agreement. 

The authorized officials whose signatures appear below have committed their 

respective agencies to the terms of this Agreement. The contract is effective 

on September 1, 2019. 

 

For the County of______________________________________________________ 

Department/Agency of _________________________________________________, 

 

___________________________________ ____________________________ 

(Signature) (Date) 

 

___________________________________ ____________________________ 

(Name – Print or Type) (Title – Print or Type) 

 

For the California Department of Social Services, 

 

___________________________________ ____________________________ 

(Signature) (Date) 

 

  Chief, Contracts & Purchasing Bureau  

(Name – Print or Type) (Title – Print or Type) 

 

  



v2019 06 24 
Page 24 of 24 

EXHIBIT A 

Exhibit A consists of the current versions of the following documents, copies of which 

can be requested by the County Department/Agency information security and privacy 

staff from CDSS by emailing CDSS at cdsspsa@dss.ca.gov.  

• Computer Matching and Privacy Protection Act Agreement between the SSA 

and California Health and Human Services Agency  

• Information Exchange Agreement between SSA and CDSS (IEA-F and IEA-S) 

• Electronic Information Exchange Security Requirements and Procedures for 

State and Local Agencies Exchanging Electronic Information with the SSA 

(TSSR)  

EXHIBIT B 

Exhibit B consists of the current version of the following document, a copy of which 

can be requested by the County Department/Agency information security and privacy 

staff by emailing CDSS at cdsspsa@dss.ca.gov. 

• Computer Matching Agreement between the Department of Homeland 

Security, United States Citizenship and Immigration Services (DHS-USCIS) 

and California Department of Social Services (CA-DSS)  

 



County of Inyo

Public Works - Road Dept.
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  August 20, 2019 

FROM:  Trevor Taylor 
 
RE:  
Request authorization to purchase 2000 Tons of Plant (Cold) Mix Asphalt for the Bishop Road Yard.
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) declare Bowman Asphalt of Bakersfield, CA the successful bidder for 2,000 Tons of Plant 
(Cold) Mix Asphalt per Bid No. 2019-10; and B) authorize the purchase of 2,000 tons of cold mix asphalt from 
Bowman Asphalt of Bakersfield, CA in an amount not to exceed $264,907.50.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:

The Road Department solicited bids from suppliers of cold mix asphalt in July, 2019 to stock the Bishop Road 
Yard for the 2019 season.  The stockpiled material will be used for maintenance work on Inyo County roads to be 
completed under the SB-1 program.  Bids were opened on August 14th, 2019, and four bids were received:
Bowman Asphalt of Bakersfield, CA                                                                                    $264,907.50   
Granite Construction Co. of Bakersfield, CA                                                                         $276,540.00
Bing Materials of Gardnerville, NV                                                                                      $266,730.00
Wulfenstein Construction Co., Inc. of Pahrump, NV                                                              $302,777.79

The Road Department has reviewed the bids received and the apparent low bid was deemed responsive.
The Road Department is recommending your Board authorize the purchase of 2000 Tons of Cold Mix Asphalt 
from Bowman Asphalt, to be delivered to the Bishop Road Yard. The total expense, including delivery and taxes, 
is not to exceed $264,907.50.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to approve this purchase.  This is not recommended, as the materials are 
needed to perform necessary road maintenance projects.  If the purchase is not approved, the Road 
Department would need to re-advertise the Bid Package which would delay maintenance work and 
could result in less favorable bids.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

County Counsel
Auditor
 
FINANCING:
The funding for these asphalt materials to be used in road maintenance will be paid from the Road Department 
Budget 034600, Object Code 5309 Road Material.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Bing Bid
2. Bowman Bid
3. Granite Bid
4. Wulfenstein Bid
5. Bid Tab









































County of Inyo

Public Works - Road Dept.
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  August 20, 2019 

FROM:  Trevor Taylor 
 
RE:  
Request authorization to purchase 2000 Tons of Plant (Cold) Mix Asphalt for the Lone Pine Road Yard.
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) declare Bowman Asphalt of Bakersfield, CA the successful bidder for 2,000 Tons of Plant 
(Cold) Mix Asphalt per Bid No. 2019-11; and B) authorize the purchase of 2,000 Tons of cold mix asphalt from 
Bowman Asphalt of Bakersfield, CA in an amount not to exceed $234,877.50.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:

The Road Department solicited bids from suppliers of cold mix asphalt in July, 2019 to stock the Lone Pine Road 
Yard for the 2019 season.  The stockpiled material will be used for maintenance work on Inyo County roads to be 
completed under the SB-1 program.  Bids were opened on August 14th, 2019, and four bids were received:

Bowman Asphalt of Bakersfield, CA                                                                                     $234,877.50
Granite Construction Co. of Bakersfield, CA                                                                         $290,778.75
Bing Materials of Gardnerville, NV                                                                                       $294,230.00
Wulfenstein Construction Co., Inc. of Pahrump, NV                                                              $337,161.43

The Road Department has reviewed the bids received and the apparent low bid was deemed responsive.
The Road Department is recommending your Board award the base bid to Bowman Asphalt and authorize the 
purchase of 2000 Tons of Cold Mix Asphalt, to be delivered to the Lone Pine Road Yard. The total expense, 
including delivery and taxes, is not to exceed $234,877.50.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to approve this purchase.  This is not recommended, as the materials are needed 
to perform necessary road maintenance projects.  If the purchase is not approved, the Road Department would 
need to re-advertise the Bid Package which would delay maintenance work and could result in less favorable 
bids.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

County Counsel
Auditor
 
FINANCING:
The funding for these asphalt materials to be used in road maintenance will be paid from the Road Department 
Budget 034600, Object Code 5309 Road Material.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Granite Bid
2. Wolfenstein Bid
3. Bing Bid
4. Bowman Bid
5. Bid Tab



















































County of Inyo

Public Works - Road Dept.
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  August 20, 2019 

FROM:  Trevor Taylor 
 
RE:  
Request authorization to purchase 1000 Tons of Plant (Cold) Mix Asphalt for upcoming maintenance 
work on Panamint Valley Road.
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) declare Bowman Asphalt of Bakersfield, CA the successful bidder for 1,000 Tons of Plant 
(Cold) Mix Asphalt per Bid No. 2019-12; and B) authorize the purchase of 1,000 tons of cold mix asphalt from 
Bowman Asphalt of Bakersfield, CA in an amount not to exceed $120,656.25.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:

The Road Department solicited bids from suppliers of cold mix asphalt in July, 2019 to stockpile needed material 
for an upcoming maintenance project in the Panamint Springs area on Panamint Valley Road.  Permission has 
been granted by Caltrans for the temporary stockpiling of the material at a Caltrans owned mixing table on Hwy 
190 near the project site.  This material will be used for maintenance work on Panamint Valley Road to be 
completed under the SB-1 program.  Bids were opened on August 14th, 2019, and four bids were received:

Bowman Asphalt of Bakersfield, CA                                                                                    $120,656.25   
Granite Construction Co. of Bakersfield, CA                                                                         $181,259.38
Bing Materials of Gardnerville, NV                                                                                      $163,615.00
Wulfenstein Construction Co., Inc. of Pahrump, NV                                                              $159,874.82

The Road Department has reviewed the bids received and the apparent low bid was deemed responsive.
The Road Department is recommending your Board authorize the purchase of 1000 Tons of Cold Mix Asphalt 
from Bowman Asphalt, to be delivered to the Caltrans owned mixing table located on Hwy 190 approximately 1.5 
miles west of Panamint Valley Road. The total expense, including delivery and taxes, is not to exceed 
$120,656.25.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to approve this purchase.  This is not recommended, as the materials are 
needed to perform necessary maintenance on Panamint Valley Road.  If the purchase is not approved, 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

the Road Department would need to re-advertise the Bid Package which would delay maintenance 
work and could result in less favorable bids.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
County Counsel
Auditor
 
FINANCING:
The funding for these asphalt materials to be used in road maintenance will be paid from the Road Department 
Budget 034600, Object Code 5309 Road Material.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Bing Bid
2. Bowman Bid
3. Granite Bid
4. Wulfenstein Bid
5. Bid Tab









































County of Inyo

Public Works
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  August 20, 2019 

FROM:   
 
RE:  
Amendment 1 to the Contract with MGE Engineering Inc for engineering services related to the Round Valley 
Bridge Replacement Project
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve Amendment No. 1 to the agreement between the County of Inyo and MGE Engineering 
Inc. of Sacramento, CA, increasing the contract to an amount not to exceed $453,288.81 and adding a job 
classification to the approved Schedule of Fees, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all 
appropriate signatures being obtained.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Your Board approved the design contract with MGE Engineering Inc. on July 10, 2018, for the completion of the 
North Round Valley Bridge Replacement Project design. 

This amendment adds the Associate Bridge Engineer job classification to the Schedule of Fees for MGE.  This 
classification was overlooked in the consultants initial cost proposal, and is an important component of the bridge 
drafting work.  There are no cost increases associated with this addition.

The amendment also adds to the scope of work of MGE's environmental sub-consultant GEI for the completion of 
the environmental review of the Round Valley Bridge Replacement Project under the California Environmental 
Quality Act, as further explained in Attachment A-1.  The cost associated with this additional scope is $5,720.63, 
which is detailed in Attachment B-1.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
Contract between MGE Engineering Inc and Inyo County approved on July 10, 2018
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could choose not to approve the amendment to the contract, this is not recommended since this is a 
no cost change order that corrects an oversight in the original cost proposal.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Project partially funded by California Office of Emergency Services
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

FINANCING:
The cost of the contract are paid through budget unit 034600 (Road Budget), object code 5265 (Professional 
Services). This project is reimbursable at a rate of 75% by the California Office of Emergency Services. The cost 
associated with this additional scope is $5,720.63.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Amendment 1 to MGE Contract
2. MGE Contract



County of Inyo Standard Contract – No. 156 with MGE 
Amendment 1 

Page 1 
 

AMENDMENT NUMBER    1    TO 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND 

   MGE ENGINEERING INC   
FOR THE PROVISION OF ENGINEERING AND DESIGN SERVICES 

 
WHEREAS, the County of Inyo (hereinafter referred to as “County”) and     MGE Engineering of     

Sacramento, CA      (hereinafter referred to as “Consultant”), have entered into an Agreement for the provision of 
engineering services dated    July 10, 2018    , on County of Inyo Standard Contract No. 156, for the term from    
July 10, 2018    to    June 30, 2021. 
 

WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or 
subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendment or change is in written form, and 
executed with the same formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain 
continuity. 
 

WHEREAS, County and Consultant do desire and consent to amend such Agreement as set forth below. 
  

1. Section 3D, Limit upon amount payable under Agreement, the first sentence is revised as follows: 

The total sum of all payments made by the County to Contractor for services and work performed under 
this Agreement shall not exceed $453,288.81 (initial term) $ N/A   (option 1) and $ N/A   (option 2) for a 
total of $453,288.81 (four hundred fifty three thousand, two hundred eighty eight dollars and eighty one 
cents), hereinafter referred to as “Contract Limit” 

2. Attachment A to the Contract, Scope of Work, shall be revised to include additional tasks required for the 
completion of the environmental review of the Round Valley Bridge Replacement Project under the 
California Environmental Quality Act, as described in Attachment A-1 to the Contract.  

3. Attachment B to the Contract, Schedule of Fee’s is amended to include the job classification described in 
Attachment B-1 to the Contract, and to include the cost proposal for the additional work described in 
Attachment A-1 to the Contract. 

 
The effective date of this amendment to the Agreement is     August 20, 2019      . 
 
All other terms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and shall remain the same. 



County of Inyo Standard Contract – No. 156 with MGE 
Amendment 1 

Page 2 
 

AMENDMENT NUMBER    1    TO 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND 

   MGE ENGINEERING INC   
FOR THE PROVISION OF ENGINEERING AND DESIGN SERVICES 

 
 
 IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS  
            DAY OF                                  , 2019. 
 
 
COUNTY OF INYO     CONSULTANT 
 
 
By:        By:        
 
Dated:        Dated:        
 
        
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND    
     LEGALITY:  
 
 
       
County Counsel 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING 
     FORM: 
 
 
       
County Auditor 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL 
     REQUIREMENTS: 
 
 
       
Director of Personnel Services 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO RISK ASSESSMENT: 
 
 
       

County Risk Manager



County of Inyo Standard Contract – No. 156 with MGE 
Amendment 1 

Page 3 
 

ATTACHMENT A1 
 
 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND 
    MGE ENGINEERING INC.     

FOR THE PROVISION OF ENGINEERING AND DESIGN SERVICES 
 

 
 

TERM: 
 
 

FROM: ___ July 10, 2018___ TO: ___ June 30, 2021___ 
 
 

SCOPE OF WORK: 
 
 

The scope of work described in the original Contract, dated July 10, 2018, is revised to include 
additional tasks required for the completion of the environmental review of the Round Valley Bridge 
Replacement Project under the California Environmental Quality Act, as further described in the proposal dated 
August 9, 2019 from GEI Consultants, the environmental sub-consultant to MGE Engineering Inc. 
 



Geotechnical 

Environmental 

Water Resources 

Ecological

www.ge i con su l t a n t s . c om  GEI Consultants, Inc. 
10860 Gold Center Drive, Suite 350, Rancho Cordova, CA 95670 

916.631.4500    fax 916.634.4501

August 9, 2019 

MGE Engineering, Inc. 
Robert Sennett, S.E. 
7415 Greenhaven Drive, Suite 100 
Sacramento, CA 95831 

Re:  North Round Valley Road Bridge Replacement over Pine Creek – Inyo 
County Standard Contract #156 

Dear Bob: 

GEI is pleased for the opportunity to continue providing environmental compliance 
services related to the above referenced project. As requested by Inyo County, GEI will 
modify existing Task 2.2 “Prepare CEQA Notice of Exemption” to include preparation of 
an Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration for public/agency review. Our scope for 
the revised task follows and our cost estimate (prepared per Caltrans Exhibit 10-H) is 
provided as Attachment #1.  

Task 2.2. Prepare CEQA Notice of Exemption 
Following review of the draft Exemption Memo/Environmental Checklist, County staff 
determined that an Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration (IS/MND) will be 
necessary to complete the CEQA process. GEI will expand the existing Environmental 
Checklist by including a project description, preparing the mitigated negative declaration, 
completing the checklist sections for public/agency review, and compiling the mitigation 
monitoring and reporting program (MMRP). GEI will submit a draft IS/MND to the 
County/MGE by August 30, 2019.   

Following team review of the draft IS/MND, GEI will prepare the required noticing 
(Notice of Completion) and submit 15 CD copies of the public review draft IS/MND to 
the State Clearinghouse to initiate the 30-day public/agency review period.  Following 
review, GEI will incorporate any comment letters received and prepare a final IS/MND 
for County staff. Consistent with CEQA guidelines, GEI does not anticipate providing 
detailed responses to comment letters received during the 30-day review period.    

Task 2.2. Assumptions 

• As confirmed with the Great Basin Unified Air Pollution Control District, no air
quality modelling will be required to quantify air quality/greenhouse gas emissions
resulting from construction of the project.

County of Inyo Standard Contract – No. 156 with MGE 
Amendment 1 

Page 4 



• Any additional Native American consultation activities consistent with AB 52, will
be provided by County staff.

• GEI will provide County staff/MGE with a PDF/word version and up to 20 CD
copies of the IS/MND (including attachments). Any additional paper copies (or
mailing) of the IS/MND will be provided by the County.

On behalf of GEI, we thank you for the opportunity to present this information to you. 
We trust you will find this information adequate for your review. Should you need 
additional information or have any further questions, please do not hesitate to give me a 
call at (916) 631-4500. 

Sincerely yours, 

Ray Weiss 

County of Inyo Standard Contract – No. 156 with MGE 
Amendment 1 

Page 5 



County of Inyo Standard Contract – No. 156 with MGE 
Amendment 1 

Page 6 
 

ATTACHMENT B1 
 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND 
   MGE ENGINEERING INC    

FOR THE PROVISION OF ENGINEERING AND DESIGN SERVICES 
     

 
 

TERM: 
 
 

FROM: ___ July 10, 2018___ TO: ___ June 30, 2021___ 
 

SCHEDULE OF FEES: 
 
The Schedule of Fees is amended to include the job classification of Associate Bridge Engineer to the approved 
job classifications for MGE Engineering Inc., with an initial hourly rate of $54.00/hour, and subject to the 
anticipated salary increases described in Attachment B to the Contract. 
 
The consultant shall be compensated at the rates shown in GEI Consultants’ proposal dated August 9, 2019 for the 
added scope of work described in Attachment A-1.  Payment for the rates and costs identified herein shall 
constitute full compensation for providing all services, labor, materials and other incidentals to perform all work 
described in Attachment A-1. The costs shown in the proposal are estimates of probable cost incurred by the 
consultant.  The total compensation to be provided shall be for actual work performed, and shall not exceed the 
total contract amount. 
 
 



Local Assistance Procedures Manual Exhibit 10-H1
Cost Proposal

Note: Mark-ups are Not Allowed Prime Consultant Subconsultant 2nd Tier Subconsultant
Consultant
Project No. Contract No. Inyo County #156 Date 8/9/2019

DIRECT LABOR
hours Actual Hourly Rate Total

24 $62.80 $1,507.20
Document Specialist 6 $35.24 $211.44
Administrative Assistant Sonia Klingensmith 2 $23.00 $46.00

0 $55.68 $0.00
0 $30.96 $0.00
0 $23.48 $0.00
0 $46.80 $0.00
0 $43.28 $0.00
0 $39.44 $0.00
0 $35.24 $0.00
0 $41.48 $0.00

LABOR COSTS 32

a) Subtotal Direct Labor Costs $1,764.64
b) Anticipated Salary Increases (see page 2 for calculation) $0.00

c) TOTAL DIRECT LABOR COSTS [(a) + (b)] $1,764.64
INDIRECT COSTS
d) Fringe Benefits (Rate: 92.52% )  e) Total Fringe Benefits [(c) x (d)] $1,632.64
f) Overhead and G&A (Rate: 102.19% ) g) Overhead [(c) x (f)] $1,803.29
h) General and Administrative (Rate: 0.00% ) i) Gen & Admin [(c) x (h)] $0.00

j) TOTAL INDIRECT COSTS  [(e) + (g) + (i)] $3,435.93

FIXED FEE 10.00% k) TOTAL FIXED FEE [(c) + (j)] x (q)] $520.06

l) CONSULTANT’S OTHER DIRECT COSTS (ODC) – ITEMIZE (Add additional pages if necessary)

    Unit Unit Cost Total
$ $

 $ -   
 $ -   
 $ -   

$ $
 $ -   

m) SUBCONSULTANTS’ COSTS (Add additional pages if necessary)

$

$

$

$

$

$

$0.00

TOTAL COST [(c) + (j) + (k) + (n)] $5,720.63

l) TOTAL OTHER DIRECT COSTS

m) TOTAL SUBCONSULTANTS’ COSTS

QuantityDescription of Item

Senior Professional Ray Weiss

EXHIBIT 10-H1  COST PROPOSAL   Page 1 OF 3
ACTUAL COST-PLUS-FIXED FEE OR LUMP SUM (FIRM FIXED PRICE) CONTRACTS

(DESIGN, ENGINEERING AND ENVIRONMENTAL STUDIES)

North Round Valley Road Bridge 

Classification/Title Name

GEI Consultants Inc.

Charisse Case

n) TOTAL OTHER DIRECT COSTS INCLUDING SUBCONSULTANTS [(l)+(m)]

  NOTES: 
1. Key personnel must be marked with an asterisk (*) and employees that are subject to prevailing wage requirements must be marked with two asterisks
(**). All costs must comply with the Federal cost principles. Subconsultants will provide their own cost proposals.
2. The cost proposal format shall not be amended. Indirect cost rates shall be updated on an annual basis in accordance with the consultant’s annual
accounting period and established by a cognizant agency or accepted by Caltrans.
3. Anticipated salary increases calculation (page 2) must accompany.

County of Inyo Standard Contract – No. 156 with MGE 
Amendment 1 

Page 5 



1. Calculate Average Hourly Rate for 1st year of the contract (Direct Labor Subtotal divided by total hours)

Avg Hourly 5 Year Contract 
Rate Duration

$1,764.64 = $55.15 Year 1 Avg Hourly Rate

Avg Hourly Rate 
Year 1 $55.15 + = $57.08 Year 2 Avg Hourly Rate
Year 2 $57.08 + = $59.07 Year 3 Avg Hourly Rate
Year 3 $59.07 + = $61.14 Year 4 Avg Hourly Rate
Year 4 $61.14 + = $63.28 Year 5 Avg Hourly Rate
Year 5 $63.28 + = $65.49 Year 6 Avg Hourly Rate
Year 6 $65.49 + = $67.79 Year 7 Avg Hourly Rate

Total Hours 
per Year

Year 1 100.00% * = 32.0 Estimated Hours Year 1
Year 2 0.00% * = 0.0 Estimated Hours Year 2
Year 3 0.00% * = 0.0 Estimated Hours Year 3
Year 4 0.00% * = 0.0 Estimated Hours Year 4
Year 5 0.00% * = 0.0 Estimated Hours Year 5
Year 6 0.00% * = 0.0 Estimated Hours Year 6

Total 100% = 32.0

Year 1 $55.15 * = $1,764.64 Estimated Hours Year 1
Year 2 $57.08 * = $0.00 Estimated Hours Year 2
Year 3 $59.07 * = $0.00 Estimated Hours Year 3
Year 4 $61.14 * = $0.00 Estimated Hours Year 4
Year 5 $63.28 * = $0.00 Estimated Hours Year 5
Year 6 $65.49 * = $0.00 Estimated Hours Year 6

= $1,764.64 
= $1,764.64 
= $0.00 Transfer to Page 1

(calculated above)
32.0

(calculated above)

Total Hours 
per Cost Proposal

32.0

0.0

Total

32.0
32.0
32.0
32.0
32.0

3. Calculate estimated hours per year (Multiply estimate % each year by total hours)

3.5%

4. Calculate Total Costs including Escalation (Multiply Average Hourly Rate by the number of hours)

(CALCULATIONS FOR ANTICIPATED SALARY INCREASES)

2. Calculate hourly rate for all years (Increase the Average Hourly Rate for a year by proposed escalation %)

0.0

EXHIBIT 10-H1  COST PROPOSAL Page 2 of 3

3.5%
3.5%

Proposed Escalation 
3.5%
3.5%
3.5%

Direct Labor Subtotal Total Hours

ACTUAL COST-PLUS-FIXED FEE OR LUMP SUM (FIRM FIXED PRICE) CONTRACTS

per Cost Proposal  per Cost Proposal

Avg Hourly Rate Estimated hours
 Cost per Year

Estimated % 

32

0.0
0.0

NOTES:
1. This is not the only way to estimate salary increases. Other methods will be accepted if they clearly indicate the % increase, the # of years of the contract, and a 
breakdown of the labor to be performed each year.
2. An estimation that is based on direct labor multiplied by salary increase % multiplied by the # of years is not acceptable.
(i.e. $250,000 x 2%  x  5 yrs = $25,000 is not an acceptable methodology)
3. This assumes that one year will be worked at the rate on the cost proposal before salary increases are granted.
4. Calculations for anticipated salary escalation must be provided. 

Estimated total of Direct Labor Salary Increase 

0.0

 Direct Labor Subtotal before Escalation
 Total Direct Labor Cost with Escalation

Completed Each Year

County of Inyo Standard Contract – No. 156 with MGE 
Amendment 1 

Page 8 



Certification of Direct Costs:

1 Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP)
2 Terms and conditions of the contract
3 Title 23 United States Code Section 112 - Letting of Contracts
4 48 Code of Federal Regulations Part 31 - Contract Cost Principles and Procedures
5

6 48 Code of Federal Regulations Part 9904 - Cost Accounting Standards Board (when applicable)

Local governments are responsible for applying only cognizant agency approved or Caltrans accepted Indirect Cost Rate(s).

Prime Consultant or Subconsultant Certifying:

Name:          Title *: 

Signature : 8/9/2019

Email:          

Address: 

List services the consultant is providing under the proposed contract:

(916) 631-4500

*An individual executive or financial officer of the consultant’s or subconsultant’s organization at a level no lower than a Vice President or
a Chief Financial Officer, or equivalent, who has authority to represent the financial information utilized to establish the cost proposal for
the contract.

Exhibit 10-H1 Cost Proposal  Page 3 of 3

I, the undersigned, certify to the best of my knowledge and belief that all direct costs identified on the cost proposal(s) in this contract are 
actual, reasonable, allowable, and allocable to the contract in accordance with the contract terms and the following requirements: 

23 Code of Federal Regulations Part 172 - Procurement, Management, and Administration of Engineering and Design Related 
Service 

All costs must be applied consistently and fairly to all contracts.  All documentation of compliance must be retained in the project files and 
be in compliance with applicable federal and state requirements.  Costs that are noncompliant with the federal and state requirements are not 
eligible for reimbursement. 

Date of Certification (mm/dd/yyyy): 

Phone Number:

2868 Prospect Park Drive, Suite 400, Rancho Cordova, CA 95670

pdunn@geiconsultants.com

Phil Dunn Vice President 

County of Inyo Standard Contract – No. 156 with MGE 
Amendment 1 

Page 9 











































































































County of Inyo

Water Department
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  August 20, 2019 

FROM:  Aaron Steinwand 
 
RE:  APPOINTMENT OF ONE APPLICANT TO FILL THE VACANCY ON THE WATER COMMISSION 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board consider the Letter of Interest received for appointment to the Water Commission and appoint 
one Water Commissioner with a term ending December 31, 2022.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Water Commission currently has one vacancy with a term ending December 31, 2022.  The Clerk of the 
Board has advertised this vacancy in accordance with County policy.  Mr. Paul Huette submitted a letter of 
interest seeking appointment to the Commission to complete a four (4) year term of office ending December 31, 
2022.  An additional application was received from Steve Gagnon, part time Independence resident, after the 
deadline date (also attached).

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Not appoint a Commissioner at this time and re-advertise to fill the vacancy.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
None
 
FINANCING:
Water Commission stipends and travel expenses are paid from the Water Department budget (024102).
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. P Huette 2019
2. S Gagnon 2019
3. Notice of Vacancy







PROOF OF PUBLICATION
(2015.5 C.C.P.)

STATE OF CALIFORNIA,
COUNTY OF INYO

I am a citizen of the United States
and a resident of the County aforesaid.
I am over the age of eighteen years,

And not a party to or interested in the
above-entitled matter. I am the principal
clerk of the printer of the

The lnyo Register

County of lnyo
The lnyo Register has been adjudged a
newspaper of general circulation by the
Superior Court of the County of lnyo,
State of California, under date of
Oct. 5, 1953, Case Number 5414;
that the notice, of which the annexed
is a printed copy (set in type not
smaller than non-pareil), has been
published in each regular and entire
issue of said newspaper and not in
any supplement thereof, on the
following
date, to with:

June 22ND

ln the year of 2019

I certify (or declare) under penalty of perjury
that the foregoing is true and correct.

Dated at Bishop, California, on this
22ND Day of June,2019

tn'' 
RHf *e$E1prerk's 

Firins stamp

?trs Jiiil ?? fs t?' 14

f- ,i

Proof of Publication of
Public Notice

the lnyo County Board

you are interested in
the lnyo County

N, lndependence,

dcffis@inyocounty.!s.
more information,
878-0001.

w.22j9 #19289)

or

the lnyo County

ol mp.
too

PatSupervisors

coMMrsstoN

3.1 ,2021

IS HEREBY

is acceptirlg
to fill one (1)

an
term ending

, please
request for

Signature



County of Inyo

Health & Human Services - Health/Prevention
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  August 20, 2019 

FROM:  Sharon Wilson 
 
RE:  Agreement between Inyo County and California Department of Health Care Services to participate in Medi-
Cal County Inmate Program (MCIP) 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board ratify and approve Agreement No. 19-96163 between County of Inyo Health and Human Services 
and the California Department of Health Care Services, Medi-Cal Inmate Program (MCIP) in an amount not to 
exceed $100,089.29 for the period of July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020, contingent upon the Board's approval of the 
Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Budget, and authorize the HHS Director to sign. 
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Your Board approved the participation agreement between Inyo county and the California Department of Health 
Care Services (DHCS) for the FY 19/20 MCIP on April 9, 2019. The agreement is coming before your Board as a 
ratification because it was not received from DHCS until August 6, 2019.

The Medi-Cal Inmate Program provides Medi-Cal coverage for eligible inmates who receive inpatient services at 
a medical facility located off the grounds of the correctional facility for an expected stay of more than 24 hours.  
This program will relieve the county of the federal share of these services provided to inmates.  The medical 
provider will bill Medi-Cal as they usually do and receive payment.  DHCS will then quarterly submit invoices to 
the counties where the inmate is being held to re-coop the non-federal share of the services. 

The administration fee for these services has been raised to $89.29 from $87.11 in FY 19/20. 

Health and Human Services has developed a comprehensive case management system to identify when an 
inmate’s hospitalization meets these criteria so that the Medi-Cal application is completed timely, the dates of 
services and eligibility correspond, and services and costs are tracked.

The Medi-Cal Inmate Program provides Medi-Cal coverage for eligible inmates who receive inpatient services at 
a medical facility located off the grounds of the correctional facility for an expected stay of more than 24 hours.  
This program will relieve the county of the federal share of these services provided to inmates.  The medical 
provider will bill Medi-Cal as they usually do and receive payment.  DHCS will then quarterly submit invoices to 
the counties where the inmate is being held to re-coop the non-federal share of the services. 

The administration fee for these services has been raised to $89.29 from $87.11 in FY 19/20. 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

Health and Human Services has developed a comprehensive case management system to identify when an 
inmate’s hospitalization meets these criteria so that the Medi-Cal application is completed timely, the dates of 
services and eligibility correspond, and services and costs are tracked.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could choose not to ratify this agreement. This is not recommended as this would leave the county 
responsible for the cost of all medical services provided to the inmate that would otherwise be paid by Medi-Cal. 
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
HHS divisions, Sheriff, and Probation
 
FINANCING:
Health Services Realignment. These expenses are paid out of Health (045100) in Professional Services (5265). 
No County General Funds.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. 19-96163 Inyo MCIP Agreement FY 19-20
2. 19-96163 Addendum A_MCIP FY 2019-20 (7.25.19).docx
3. 19-96163 Addendum B HIPAA
4. GIA-610 rev 072019
5. CCC 042017 rev 072019



County of Inyo  
19-96163 

 

1 

 

         MEDI-CAL COUNTY INMATE PROGRAM AGREEMENT 
 

 

Article 1 – Parties 
 

A. The parties to this Agreement (Agreement) are County of Inyo (the County) and 
the California Department of Health Care Services (DHCS). 

 
B. The County may voluntarily choose to participate in the Medi-Cal County Inmate 

Program (MCIP) by entering into this Agreement as authorized by Welfare and 
Institutions Code sections 14053.7 and 14053.8, and Government Code sections 
26605.6, 26605.7, and 26605.8.   

 
C. DHCS is the single state agency responsible for administering the California 

Medical Assistance Program (Medi–Cal), including MCIP, pursuant to California 
Welfare and Institutions Code section 14100.1.   

 
Article 2 – Purpose of the Agreement 

 
A. The purpose of this Agreement is to set forth the terms a County must abide by in 

order to participate in MCIP.  If a County does not participate in MCIP or does not 
abide by the terms of this Agreement, the County remains responsible for 
arranging for and paying for medical care for its inmates.  MCIP creates budgetary 
savings for the County for the medical care provided to its Medi-Cal eligible 
inmates.  MCIP, makes federal financial participation (FFP) available for medical 
care provided to Medi-Cal eligible county inmates. The County receives budgetary 
savings because it does not fund the federal share of MCIP services for their Medi-
Cal eligible inmates.  MCIP services are provided by Medi-Cal providers to Medi-
Cal eligible inmates, for which FFP may be claimed consistent with federal law, 
including but not limited to subparagraph (A) following paragraph (29) of Section 
1905(a) of the Social Security Act.   

 
1) MCIP allows the Medi-Cal providers to directly bill DHCS for MCIP services 

and DHCS will reimburse the Medi-Cal providers at their applicable Medi-
Cal rate for the services rendered, to the extent FFP is available.  DHCS 
will seek and retain FFP claimed for MCIP services and the County will 
reimburse DHCS any remaining balance for the claims paid by DHCS to the 
Medi-Cal provider for MCIP services, except for the MCIP services provided 
by public providers under the certified public expenditure (CPE) process.     
 

2) When the Medi-Cal provider is a Designated Public Hospital (DPH) or other 
public provider that incurs the cost of the nonfederal share pursuant to the 
CPE process, the Medi-Cal provider shall receive the FFP resulting from 
expenditures for the MCIP services.  Notwithstanding the sentence above, 
DPHs may claim under Subparagraph 1 for MCIP services that are not 
claimed through the CPE process established in the Demonstration Project. 



County of Inyo  
19-96163 

 

2 

 

 
B. The County shall reimburse DHCS its apportioned share of the nonfederal share 

of the administrative costs incurred for the administration of MCIP based on 
Addendum A.   

 
 

Article 3 – Term of the Agreement 
 
Subject to the provisions of this Agreement, the term of this Agreement shall be one year 
from July 1, 2019, through June 30, 2020.  
 

Article 4 – Maximum Payable Amount 
 

A. The amount under this Agreement that the County shall be obligated to reimburse 
DHCS for MCIP services paid by DHCS to Medi-Cal providers shall not exceed the 
nonfederal share of the Medi-Cal payments for MCIP services for the County’s 
inmates incurred by DHCS. The maximum payable amount shall not exceed: 
$100,000.00.  This amount is subject to the annual limitations listed below: 
 

Year MCIP Services  
Total Nonfederal Share 

 
SFY 2019-20 

 

 
$100,000.00 

 
B. The amount that the County shall be obligated to pay DHCS for MCIP 

administrative services rendered under this Agreement shall not exceed its 
apportioned share of the nonfederal share of the federally claimable costs of 
administering MCIP incurred by DHCS. The maximum payable amount shall not 
exceed the County’s apportioned share, which shall be based on a methodology 
specified in Addendum A, which is: $89.29.  This amount is subject to the annual 
limitations listed below: 
 

Year MCIP Administrative Services 
Total Nonfederal Share for 

the County 

 
SFY 2019-20 

 

 
$89.29 

 
C. The maximum payable amount under this Agreement shall not exceed  

$ 100,089.29. 
 

D. For future SFY periods not covered under this Agreement, the maximum payable 
amount will be determined through a new Agreement or an amendment to this 
Agreement. 

 
 



County of Inyo  
19-96163 

 

3 

 

Article 5 – Contact Persons 
 
Any notice, request, demand or other communication required or permitted hereunder, 
shall be deemed to be properly given when deposited in the United States mail, postage 
prepaid, and addressed: 
 
In the case of the County, to: 
 

County Coordinator 
County of Inyo 
Attn: Anna Scott, Deputy Director 
P.O. Box Drawer H 
Independence, CA 93526 
ascott@inyocounty.us 
(760) 873-7868 

 
Or to such person or address as the County may furnish in writing or e-mail to DHCS. 
 
In the case of DHCS, to: 
 

California Department of Health Care Services 
Safety Net Financing Division 
County Based Claiming & Inmate Services Section 
Attn: Inmate Medi-Cal Claiming Unit 
1501 Capitol Avenue, MS 4504 
P.O. Box 997436 
Sacramento, CA  95899-7436 
 

Or to such person or address as DHCS may, from time to time, furnish in writing or email 
to County. 
 

Article 6 – Payment Terms and Invoicing 
 

A. General Terms 
 

1) The County shall compensate DHCS for the County’s apportioned share of 
the nonfederal share of MCIP administrative services, and for the 
nonfederal share of MCIP services listed in Article 7, as required by Welfare 
and Institutions Code sections 14053.7 and 14053.8, and Government 
Code sections 26605.6, 26605.7, and 26605.8, within sixty (60) days of 
receipt of an invoice from DHCS, which specifies both the total federally 
claimable cost, and the nonfederal share of the total cost, for payments 
DHCS has made to providers, except that the County shall not reimburse 
the state for the nonfederal share of services billed by Medi-Cal providers 
under a CPE process, as described in Articles 8 and 11, below. MCIP 
administrative services and MCIP services shall be separately invoiced by 



County of Inyo  
19-96163 

 

4 

 

DHCS to the County. Addendum A attached to this Agreement includes 
details regarding the nonfederal share of administrative costs. If the County 
is found to have overpaid DHCS comparing its owed nonfederal share to 
payments actually made, DHCS shall refund the overpayment to the County 
within forty-five (45) days of an invoice from the County, containing the 
same information. This refund may be made by offsetting the amount 
against the County’s next quarterly payment due to DHCS.  

 
2) Failure by the County to timely compensate DHCS pursuant to 

Paragraphs B and C shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement 
by the County, which, at DHCS’ discretion, may result in termination by 
DHCS pursuant to Article 10.  The County may cure such breach by 
rendering payment of the amount owed to DHCS prior to the termination 
of this Agreement. 

 
3) In no event shall payment be made by the County for any invoice or portion 

thereof exceeding the respective maximum annual Agreement amount 
specified in Article 4.  Payment for any MCIP administrative services 
rendered by DHCS or MCIP services paid by DHCS exceeding the 
respective maximum annual Agreement amount shall require an 
amendment to this Agreement pursuant to Article 9.  If the County fails to 
execute a retroactive amendment to the maximum payable amount under 
this Agreement, DHCS shall terminate the Agreement pursuant to Article 
10. 

 
4) Payments shall be sent to DHCS at the following address (or such other 

address as DHCS may specify in writing): 
 

California Department of Health Care Services 
Safety Net Financing Division 
County Based Claiming & Inmate Services Section 
Attn: Inmate Medi-Cal Claiming Unit 
1501 Capitol Avenue, MS 4504 
P.O. Box 997436 
Sacramento, CA  95899-7436 

 
B. MCIP Services 

 
1) DHCS shall submit to the County a quarterly invoice for MCIP services that 

identifies the nonfederal share amount, and a report that contains 
information regarding paid claims data for the quarter, including information 
identifying the provider of services and the beneficiary, the recipient aid 
code, and amount of reimbursement, and other information that may be 
agreed to between the parties. 
 



County of Inyo  
19-96163 

 

5 

 

2) The DHCS invoice shall not contain and the County shall not compensate 
DHCS for MCIP services provided by Medi-Cal providers where the County 
incurs the cost of providing MCIP services and claims them through the 
CPE process.   

 
3) If the Medi-Cal provider renders MCIP services that are not reimbursable 

under the CPE process established, then the invoice shall contain and the 
County shall reimburse DHCS for the nonfederal share of DHCS’ payments 
for these MCIP services. 
 

C. MCIP Administrative Services 
 

1) DHCS shall submit to the County an annual invoice for the County’s 
apportioned share of the nonfederal share of MCIP administrative services 
based on Addendum A. The annual invoice for reimbursement identifies the 
following summarized categories of DHCS costs for the allocated SFY 
period billed: salary, benefits, operating expenses, and total costs. Costs 
shall be multiplied by one minus the Federal Medical Assistance 
Percentage applicable to such administrative costs subject to the limit on 
the amount reimbursable by the County under Article 4. For SFY 2019-20 
and thereafter, DHCS shall submit annual invoices to the County no later 
than one hundred eighty (180) days following the close of the SFY.  
 

2) The County shall not be obligated to pay DHCS for the MCIP administrative 
services covered by any invoice if DHCS presents the invoice to the County 
more than one (1) year after this Agreement terminates. 

 
Article 7 – DHCS Responsibilities 

 
A. MCIP Services 

 
1) DHCS shall pay the appropriate Medi-Cal fee-for-service rate to Medi-Cal 

providers that directly bill DHCS for MCIP services rendered to the County’s 
MCIP-eligible inmates and shall seek FFP.  DHCS shall be responsible to 
pay such providers only to the extent the County commits to reimburse 
DHCS the nonfederal share of all federally reimbursable MCIP claims and 
for which FFP is available and retained by DHCS for the MCIP service 
claims. 
 

2) DHCS shall maintain accounting records to a level of detail which identifies 
the actual expenditures incurred for MCIP services, the services provided, 
the county responsible, the specific inmate treated, the inmate’s aid code, 
and the specific provider billing. 
 

3) DHCS shall submit claims in a timely manner to the federal Medicaid 
Program to draw down FFP for DHCS, and shall draw down and distribute 



County of Inyo  
19-96163 

 

6 

 

FFP for MCIP services claimed through the CPE process.  Such claims shall 
be submitted in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations. 

 
B. MCIP Administrative Services 

 
1) DHCS shall administer MCIP and this Agreement for claiming federal 

reimbursement for MCIP services.  It is understood by both the County and 
DHCS that other administrative activities including, but not limited to, 
transporting MCIP eligible beneficiaries, arranging for their care and for their 
incarceration remain the administrative responsibilities of the County. 
 

2) DHCS shall maintain accounting records to a level of detail which identifies 
the actual expenditures incurred for personnel services which includes 
salary/wages, benefits, overhead costs for DHCS’s staff, as well as 
equipment and all related operating expenses applicable to these positions 
including, but not limited to, general expense, rent and supplies, and travel 
cost for identified staff and managerial staff working specifically on activities 
or assignments directly related to MCIP. 

 
C. General Responsibilities 

 
1) DHCS shall: 

 
i. Ensure that an appropriate audit trail exists within DHCS records and 

accounting system and maintain expenditure data as indicated in this 
Agreement. 

 
ii. Designate a person to act as liaison with County with regard to issues 

concerning this Agreement.  This person shall be identified to 
County’s contact person for this Agreement. 

 
iii. Provide a written response by email or mail to County’s contact 

person within thirty (30) days of receiving a written request for 
information related to MCIP. 

 
iv. With each quarterly invoice, provide paid claim analysis report to the 

County regarding MCIP claims submitted by providers for the 
County’s MCIP-eligible inmates, as used for the determination of the 
corresponding nonfederal share that is the County’s obligation under 
this Agreement.  

 
2) Should the scope of work or services to be performed under this Agreement 

conflict with DHCS’ responsibilities under federal Medicaid law, the 
responsibilities under federal Medicaid law shall take precedence.   

 



County of Inyo  
19-96163 

 

7 

 

3) DHCS’ cessation of any activities due to federal Medicaid law 
responsibilities does not relinquish the obligation of the County to reimburse 
DHCS for MCIP administrative costs and MCIP services incurred by DHCS 
in connection with this Agreement for periods in which the County 
participated in the program. 
 

4) DHCS agrees to provide to the County, or any federal or state department 
having monitoring or reviewing authority, access to and the right to examine 
its applicable records and documents for compliance with relevant federal 
and state statutes, rules and regulations, and this Agreement. 

 
Article 8 – County Responsibilities 

 
A. MCIP Services 

 
1) Except as provided in (vi.) of this section, the County is responsible for 

reimbursing DHCS for the nonfederal share of MCIP services paid by DHCS 
to Medi-Cal providers rendering MCIP services to the County’s MCIP 
eligible beneficiaries. 

 
i. The County may pay a Medi-Cal provider to the extent required by 

or otherwise permitted by state and federal law to arrange for 
services for the MCIP individuals. Such additional amounts shall be 
paid entirely with County funds, and shall not be eligible for Social 
Security Act Title XIX FFP. 

 
ii. If DHCS pays the Medi-Cal provider more than what the county 

would have paid for services rendered, the county cannot request 
the difference from the Medi-Cal provider. 

 
iii. If the county would have paid the Medi-Cal provider less than what 

DHCS paid the Medi-Cal provider, the county is still obligated to 
reimburse DHCS for the nonfederal share of the payment from 
DHCS for MCIP services. 
 

iv. In the event that FFP is not available for any MCIP service claimed 
pursuant to this Agreement, the County shall be solely responsible 
for arranging and paying for any such MCIP service. 
 

v. If the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) determines 
an overpayment has occurred for a payment made to a Medi-Cal 
provider for MCIP services to the County’s MCIP-eligible inmate, 
including the application of any federal payment limit that reduces 
the amount of FFP available for MCIP services, then DHCS shall 
seek the overpayment amount from the provider and return the 
collected FFP to CMS and return the collected nonfederal share of 



County of Inyo  
19-96163 

 

8 

 

the overpayment to the County.  In the event that DHCS cannot 
recover from the Medi-Cal provider such overpayment, the County 
shall pay DHCS an amount equal to the FFP portion of the 
unrecovered amount to the extent that section 1903(d)(2)(D) of the 
Social Security Act is found not to apply. 

 
vi. The County is not responsible for reimbursing DHCS for the 

nonfederal share of expenditures for MCIP services provided by 
DPHs when those services are reimbursed under the CPE process 
because DHCS is not responsible for the nonfederal share of 
expenditures for MCIP services reimbursed in the CPE process. 

 
vii. The County is responsible for reimbursing DHCS for the nonfederal 

share of MCIP services provided by DPHs that are not reimbursed 
under the CPE process. 

 
2) If CMS determines DHCS claimed a higher federal medical assistance 

percentage (FMAP) rate than is allowed and FFP is reduced by CMS for the 
MCIP services provided to a County’s MCIP-eligible inmate for MCIP 
services, then the County shall hold DHCS harmless for the return of the 
FFP to CMS.  
 

B. MCIP Administrative Services 
 

1) As a condition of participating in MCIP, the County accepts its responsibility 
for reimbursing DHCS for the County’s apportioned share of the nonfederal 
share of costs of MCIP administrative services based on Addendum A, 
performed by DHCS in administering MCIP, so that there is no expenditure 
from the State General Fund. 
 

2) The County shall reimburse DHCS its allotted portion of the nonfederal 
share of funding for compensation, associated operating expenses, 
equipment, and travel costs for no more than 3.50 full-time equivalent (FTE) 
positions composed of: one-half (0.50) FTE Staff Service Manager I, one 
(1) FTE Health Program Specialist I, one (1) FTE Staff Services 
Analyst/Associate Governmental Program Analyst, one-half (0.50) FTE 
Attorney, and one-half (0.50) FTE Accounting Officer, to be established and 
housed at DHCS, to support the reported expenditures submission process 
for obtaining federal reimbursement under this Agreement. The County’s 
allotted portion shall be based on a methodology specified in Addendum A. 
 
 

  



County of Inyo  
19-96163 

 

9 

 

C. General Responsibilities 
 

1) Upon the County’s compliance with all applicable provisions in this 
Agreement and applicable laws, the County may send its MCIP-eligible 
inmates to Medi-Cal providers to receive MCIP services. 

 
2) The County shall reimburse DHCS pursuant to Paragraphs A and B with 

funds from the County’s General Fund, or from any other funds allowed 
under federal law and regulation, including but not limited to, Section 
1903(w) of the Social Security Act and Code of Federal Regulations, title 
42, part 433, subpart B.   
 

3) In the event of any federal deferral or disallowance which is applicable to 
MCIP expenditures, the County shall provide all documents requested by 
DHCS within fourteen (14) days. 

 
4) The County shall assist with the completion of and delivery of completed 

Medi-Cal applications to County Welfare Department (CWD) within 90 
calendar days after the date of admission of the inmate to a Medi-Cal 
provider off of the grounds of the county correctional facility which results in 
an expected stay of more than 24 hours. 

 
Article 9 – Amendments 

 
A. Amendments to this Agreement shall be made only by a writing signed by the 

parties to this Agreement and, if required by state law, by approval of the California 
Department of General Services.  Notwithstanding the previous sentence, any 
update made to the appropriate contact persons identified in Article 5 may be made 
by e-mail to the other contact person or persons and without formal amendment.   
 

B. This Agreement shall be amended pursuant to findings from the periodic 
assessment identified in Article 11.H, to accurately reflect the State’s 
administrative costs and MCIP medical care costs. 

 
Article 10 – Termination and Agreement Disputes 

 
A. This Agreement may be terminated by any party upon written notice given at least 

thirty (30) calendar days prior to the termination date. Notice shall be addressed 
to the respective parties as identified in Article 5 of this Agreement.  The County 
shall remain obliged after the termination date to pay for all MCIP administrative 
costs and MCIP services incurred by DHCS for periods in which it participated in 
the program. 

 
B. This Agreement shall be terminated upon cessation of MCIP.  The County shall 

remain obliged after the termination date to pay for all of the County’s apportioned 
share of MCIP administrative costs based on Addendum A and all of the County’s 



County of Inyo  
19-96163 

 

10 

 

MCIP services incurred by DHCS for periods in which it participated in the 
program. 

 
C. An informal dispute resolution process shall be undertaken prior to the dispute 

resolution processes described in Subparagraphs 1 to 2, below.  In case of a 
dispute there shall be a discussion between the County and DHCS staff, and if not 
resolved then the County shall address the issue to DHCS in a written letter.  If 
unresolved then the dispute resolution processes in Subparagraphs 1 to 2 shall be 
undertaken as appropriate. 
 

1) Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent the County from pursuing any other 
administrative and judicial review available to it under law. 
 

2) Judicial review pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure section 1085 shall be 
available to resolve disputes relating to the terms, performance, or 
termination of this Agreement, or any act, failure to act, conduct, order, or 
decision of DHCS that violate this Agreement subject to Article 11.F. 
 

 
D. The terms of Article 6 (Payment Terms and Invoicing), Article 10 (Termination and 

Agreement Disputes), Article 11.B (Indemnification), and Article 11.D (Records) 
shall survive after the termination date. 

 
Article 11 – General Provisions 

 
A. Definitions. 

 
1) The term “certified public expenditure process” or “CPE process” means the 

process established for the Medi-Cal program under state law (including but 
not limited to Welfare and Institutions Code section 14166.1, et seq.), the 
California Medi-Cal state plan, and approved Medicaid demonstration 
projects and waivers through which public Medi-Cal providers claim federal 
financial participation for their allowable expenditures. 
 

2) The term “days” as used in this Agreement shall mean calendar days unless 
specified otherwise. 
 

3) The term “Demonstration Project” means the California Medi-Cal 2020 
Demonstration, Number 11-W-00193/9, as approved by CMS effective 
beginning December 30, 2015. 

 
4) The term “designated public hospital” is defined as set forth in the 

Demonstration Project, which shall be codified in state law at Welfare and 
Institutions Code section 14184.10, subdivision (f) pursuant to SB 815 
(2016), and as may be modified from time to time. 
 



County of Inyo  
19-96163 

 

11 

 

5) The term “inmate” as used in this Agreement includes the persons identified 
in Welfare and Institutions Code sections 14053.7(e)(2)(A) and 14053.8(k) 
“juvenile inmate,” and Government Code sections 26605.6(a) “prisoner,” 
26605.7(a) “prisoner” and (d)(1) “probationer,” and 26605.8 “prisoner” and 
“probationer.”   
 

6) The term “MCIP” or “Medi-Cal County Inmate Program” contains the 
following three components: the Adult County Inmate Program (ACIP), as 
authorized in state law pursuant to Welfare and Institutions Code section 
14053.7 and Penal Code section 5072, the Juvenile County Ward Program 
(JCWP), as authorized in Welfare and Institutions Code section 14053.8, 
and the County Compassionate Release Program (CCRP) and County 
Medical Probation Program (CMPP), as authorized by Government Code 
sections 26605.6, 26605.7, and 26605.8.   
 

7) “MCIP administrative services” means the administrative services provided 
by DHCS personnel for the administration of MCIP, which shall include, but 
not be limited to those services provided by the personnel in Article 8 when 
claiming federal reimbursement for MCIP services and seeking 
reimbursement for DHCS from the County. 

 
8) “Medi-Cal provider” means, any individual, partnership, group association, 

corporation, institution, or entity and the officer, directors, owners, 
managing employees or agents of any partnership, group association, 
corporation, institution, or entity that provides services, goods, supplies, or 
merchandise, directly or indirectly, to a Medi-Cal beneficiary, and that has 
been enrolled in the Medi-Cal program.  

 
For purposes of MCIP, a Medi-Cal provider may claim for MCIP services 
rendered to the MCIP-eligible inmate depending on the MCIP component 
program.  For example, a clinic cannot seek reimbursement from DHCS for 
outpatient services provided to an ACIP inmate because the outpatient 
services provided are not allowable as MCIP services for ACIP. A Medi-Cal 
provider does not go through a separate Medi-Cal enrollment or certification 
process to participate in MCIP. 
 

9) “MCIP services” constitutes all of the following, only to the extent federal 
financial participation is available: a) in ACIP, Medi-Cal allowable inpatient 
hospital services, including inpatient psychiatric services, and physician 
services provided during the inpatient hospital service stay of adult inmates 
in county correctional facilities who are determined eligible for Medi-Cal 
pursuant to Welfare and Institutions Code section 14053.7;  b) in the 
Compassionate Release Program pursuant to Government Code section 
26605.6 and Medical Probation Program pursuant to Government Code 
section 26605.7, full-scope Medi-Cal services;  c) in JCWP, Medi-Cal 
allowable inpatient hospital services, including inpatient psychiatric services 



County of Inyo  
19-96163 

 

12 

 

and physician services, of juvenile inmates in county correctional facilities 
who are determined eligible for Medi-Cal services pursuant to Welfare and 
Institutions Code section 14053.8; and, d) any other Medi-Cal program for 
which federal reimbursement is available for coverage of adult inmates and 
juvenile inmates in county correctional facilities, if authorized by law and 
agreed to by the County and DHCS by amending this Agreement.  

 
10) The term “Medi-Cal rate” means the reimbursement determined by the 

reimbursement methodology approved for the Medi-Cal provider under the 
California State Plan, or Social Security Act section 1115 Demonstration 
Project or section 1915 waiver. 
 

11) The State Fiscal Year (SFY) begins on July 1st of each year and ends on 
June 30th in the subsequent calendar year. 

 
B. Indemnification.  It is agreed that the County shall defend, hold harmless, and 

indemnify DHCS, its officers, employees, and agents from any and all reported 
expenditures, liability, loss, or expense (including reasonable attorney fees) for 
injuries or damage to any person, any property, or both which arise out of the terms 
and conditions of this Agreement and the negligent or intentional acts or omissions 
of the County, its officers, employees, or agents. 
 

C. Severability.  If any term, condition, or provision of this Agreement is held by a 
court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining 
provisions will nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be 
affected, impaired or invalidated in any way. Notwithstanding the previous 
sentence, if a decision by a court of competent jurisdiction invalidates, voids, or 
renders unenforceable a term, condition, or provision in this Agreement that is 
included in the purpose of this Agreement then the parties to this Agreement shall 
either amend this Agreement pursuant to Article 9, or it shall be terminated 
pursuant to Article 10. 
 

D. Records.  DHCS and the County shall maintain and preserve all records relating 
to this Agreement for a period of three (3) years from DHCS’ receipt of the last 
payment of FFP, or until three years after all audit findings are resolved, whichever 
is later.  This does not limit any responsibilities held by DHCS or the County 
provided for elsewhere in this Agreement, or in state or federal law. 
  

E. Compliance with Applicable Laws.  All parties performance under this Agreement 
shall be in accordance with all applicable federal and state laws, including, but not 
limited to: 
  

1) The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended;  
2) Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; 
3) Title XIX of the Social Security Act; 
4) Welfare and Institutions Code section 14000 et seq.; 



County of Inyo  
19-96163 

 

13 

 

5) Government Code section 53060; 
6) The California Medicaid State Plan;  
7) Laws and regulations including, but not limited to those related to 

licensure, certification, confidentiality of records, quality assurance, and 
nondiscrimination; 

8) The Policy and Procedure Letters, and similar instructions, published with 
regulatory authority; 

9) Government Code sections 26605.6, 26605.7, and 26605.8; 
10)  Penal Code section 5072; 
11)  Title 42 of the Code of Federal Regulations; and, 
12)  California Code of Regulations. 
 

F. Controlling Law and Venue.  The validity of this Agreement and its terms or 
provisions, as well as the rights and duties of the parties hereunder, the 
interpretation and performance of this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of 
the State of California.  Venue of any action brought with regards to this Agreement 
shall be in any county in which the Attorney General maintains an office. 
 

G. Integration Clause.   
 

1) This Agreement and any exhibits and addendums attached hereto shall 
constitute the entire Agreement among the parties to it pertaining to the 
implementation of MCIP and supersedes any prior or contemporaneous 
understanding or agreement with respect to the subject matter of this 
Agreement.  
  

2) Notwithstanding Subparagraph G.1., DHCS Form 9098 or DHCS Form 
6208 (whichever is applicable) is incorporated by reference into this 
Agreement if the County has a DHCS Form 9098 or DHCS Form 6208 on 
record.  Notwithstanding Subparagraph G.1., the terms of the DHCS Form 
9098 or DHCS Form 6208 controls to the extent there is a conflict with this 
Agreement, except for Article 10 of this Agreement.  If the DHCS Form 9098 
or DHCS Form 6208 does not address a matter addressed by this 
Agreement, then this Agreement controls. 

 
H. Periodic Assessment.  Pursuant to Welfare and Institutions Code sections 14053.7 

and 14053.8, and Government Code sections 26605.6, 26605.7, and 26605.8, the 
County enters into this Agreement in order to implement MCIP under which the 
County may participate and for which the County will pay the nonfederal share of 
all federally reimbursable administrative costs and medical care costs incurred by 
DHCS performing activities described in Article 7.  The County agrees that DHCS, 
in its sole discretion, may conduct a periodic assessment in consultation with the 
counties,  of such costs incurred by DHCS to determine compliance with Welfare 
and Institutions Code sections 14053.7 and 14053.8, Penal Code section 5072, 
and Government Code sections 26605.6, 26605.7, and 26605.8, and DHCS 
agrees to ensure that all invoicing as described in Article 6 and any other relevant 



County of Inyo  
19-96163 

 

14 

 

documentation will be accordingly updated to ensure compliance with Welfare and 
Institutions Code sections 14053.7 and 14053.8, Penal Code section 5072, and 
Government Code sections 26605.6, 26605.7, and 26605.8. 
 

I. Conformance Clause.  Any provision of this Agreement in conflict with present or 
future governing authorities is hereby amended to conform to those authorities and 
such amended provisions supersede any conflicting provisions in this Agreement.  
The governing authorities include, but are not limited to the authorities listed in 
Article 11.E. 
 

J. Waiver.  No covenant, condition, duty, obligation, or undertaking made a part of 
this Agreement shall be waived except by amendment of the Agreement by the 
parties hereto, and forbearance or indulgence in any other form or manner by 
either party in any regard whatsoever shall not constitute a waiver of the covenant, 
condition, duty, obligation, or undertaking to be kept, performed, or discharged by 
the other party to which the same may apply; and, until performance or satisfaction 
of all covenants, duties, obligations, or undertakings is complete, the party shall 
have the right to invoke any remedy available under this Agreement, or under law, 
notwithstanding such forbearance or indulgence. 
 

K. Third Party Benefit.  None of the provisions of this Agreement are or shall be 
construed as for the benefit of, or enforceable by, any person not a party to this 
Agreement. 
 

L. Conflict of Interest.  The County is subject to the Medi-Cal Conflict of Interest Law, 
as applicable and set forth in Welfare and Institutions Code section 14022 and 
Article 1.1 (commencing with section 14030), and implemented pursuant to 
California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 51466. 
 

M. Budget Contingency Clause.   
 

1) DHCS will seek an appropriation in the Budget Act each State fiscal year 
which would authorize DHCS to pay Medi-Cal providers for MCIP services.  
It is mutually agreed that if the State Budget Act of the current SFY or any 
subsequent SFYs covered under this Agreement does not appropriate any 
funds for MCIP, this Agreement shall be of no further force and effect.  In 
this event, an Article 10.B termination shall be implemented and DHCS shall 
have no liability to pay any funds whatsoever to Medi-Cal providers for 
MCIP services for the County’s inmates rendered through the termination 
date of this Agreement. 
 

2) If funding associated with MCIP for any SFY is reduced by the State Budget 
Act DHCS shall have the option to cancel this Agreement, with no liability 
occurring to the State. 

 
  



County of Inyo  
19-96163 

 

15 

 

N. Limitation of State Liability.   
 

1) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, DHCS shall be held 
harmless from any federal audit disallowance and interest resulting from 
payments made by the federal Medicaid program as reimbursement for 
claims providing services for MCIP, less the amounts already remitted to or 
recovered by DHCS for the disallowed claim. 

 
2) To the extent that a federal audit disallowance and interest results from a 

claim or claims for which the Medi-Cal provider has received reimbursement 
for MCIP services under this Agreement, DHCS shall recoup from the Medi-
Cal provider, upon written notice, amounts equal to the amount of the 
disallowance and interest in that fiscal year for the disallowed claim, less 
the amounts already remitted to or recovered by DHCS.  All subsequent 
claims submitted to DHCS applicable to any previously disallowed claim, 
may be held in abeyance, with no payment made, until the federal 
disallowance issue is resolved. 

 
O. Exclusions.  The County shall comply with the following requirements: 

 
1) The conviction of an employee or subcontractor of the County, or of an 

employee of a subcontractor, of any felony or of a misdemeanor involving 
fraud, abuse of any Medi-Cal beneficiary, or abuse of the Medi-Cal program, 
shall result in the exclusion of that employee or subcontractor, or employee 
of a subcontractor, from participation in MCIP except as a beneficiary.   

 
2) Exclusion after conviction described in Article 11.O.1 shall result regardless 

of any subsequent order under Penal Code section 1203.4 allowing a 
person to withdraw his or her plea of guilty and to enter a plea of not guilty, 
or setting aside the verdict of guilty, or dismissing the accusation, 
information, or indictment. 

 
3) Suspension or exclusion of an employee or a subcontractor, or of an 

employee of a subcontractor, from participation in the Medi-Cal program, 
the Medicaid program, or the Medicare program, shall result in the exclusion 
of that employee or subcontractor, or employee of a subcontractor, from 
participation in MCIP, except as a beneficiary.   

 
4) Revocation, suspension, or restriction of the license, certificate, or 

registration of any employee, subcontractor, or employee of a 
subcontractor, shall result in exclusion from MCIP, when such license, 
certificate, or registration is required for the provision of services.   

 
  



County of Inyo  
19-96163 

 

16 

 

P. Confidentiality.  The County shall comply with the applicable confidentiality 
requirements as specified in Section 1902(a)(7) of the Social Security Act; Code 
of Federal Regulations, title 42, section 431.300; Welfare and Institutions Code 
section 14100.2; and California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 51009; and, 
the Business Associates Agreement attached and hereby incorporated by 
reference.  
 

Q. Data Sharing.   
 

1) The County shall comply with all provisions of the current Business 
Associates Agreement (BAA) incorporated by reference and made part of 
this Agreement as Addendum B. 

 
  



County of Inyo  
19-96163 

 

17 

 

 

 
The persons signing this Agreement on behalf of County and DHCS, as applicable, 
represent and warrant that he or she is an individual duly authorized and having authority 
to sign on behalf of, and approve for, County or DHCS, as applicable, and is authorized 
and designated to enter into and approve this Agreement on behalf of County or DHCS, 
as applicable. 
 
 
County of Inyo 
 
Signature:             
 
Name:                
 
Title:               
    
Date:              
       
 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH CARE SERVICES 
Contracts Section 
 
Signature:             
 
Name: Carrie Talbot  
 
Title:  SSM I, Contracts Section         
 
Date:              
 
 



County of Inyo  
19-96163 

 

 

ADDENDUM A:  MCIP Administrative Costs for State Fiscal Year 2019-20 
 
The Medi-Cal County Inmate Program (MCIP) agreement is a one-year contract giving counties 
the option to participate on an annual basis. At the beginning of each calendar year, counties 
have the opportunity to participate in the program for the upcoming State Fiscal Year (SFY) by 
completing the MCIP Agreement.  
 
The methodology for calculating each county’s nonfederal share of administrative costs was 
developed by DHCS, in consultation with the California State Association of Counties, County 
Health Executives Association of California, California Association of Public Hospitals and Health 
Systems, and the California State Sheriffs’ Association. For SFY 2019-20 the nonfederal share of 
administrative costs allocated to each county will be based on the following: 
 

 30% of the total administrative costs will be distributed evenly to participating 
counties over 50,000 in population. * 

 70% of the total administrative costs will be allocated to participating counties 
pro-rata based on population. * 
*Population data will be obtained from the California Department of Finance, 
Demographic Estimates 

 
DHCS will invoice participating counties for the nonfederal share of administrative costs six 
months after the close of the SFY based on actual administrative costs per the methodology 
above, not exceeding the estimated amounts in the MCIP agreements.    
 

 



County of Inyo  
19-96163 

Page 1 of 15 
Addendum B 

HIPAA Business Associate Addendum 
 

 
DHCS HIPAA BAA 2/15 

I. Recitals 
 
A. This Contract (Agreement) has been determined to constitute a business associate relationship under 

the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law 104-191 (“HIPAA”), the 
Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act, Public Law 111-005 ('the HITECH 
Act"), 42 U.S.C. section 17921 et seq., and their implementing privacy and security regulations at 45 
CFR Parts 160 and 164 (“the HIPAA regulations”). 

 
B. The Department of Health Care Services (“DHCS”) wishes to disclose to Business Associate certain 

information pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, some of which may constitute Protected Health 
Information (“PHI”), including protected health information in electronic media (“ePHI”), under federal 
law, and personal information ("PI") under state law. 

 
C.  As set forth in this Agreement, Contractor, here and after, is the Business Associate of DHCS acting on 

DHCS' behalf and provides services, arranges, performs or assists in the performance of functions or 
activities on behalf of DHCS and creates, receives, maintains, transmits, uses or discloses PHI and PI. 
DHCS and Business Associate are each a party to this Agreement and are collectively referred to as 
the "parties.” 

 
D. The purpose of this Addendum is to protect the privacy and security of the PHI and PI that may be 

created, received, maintained, transmitted, used or disclosed pursuant to this Agreement, and to 
comply with certain standards and requirements of HIPAA, the HITECH Act and the HIPAA regulations, 
including, but not limited to, the requirement that DHCS must enter into a contract containing specific 
requirements with Contractor prior to the disclosure of PHI to Contractor, as set forth in 45 CFR Parts 
160 and 164 and the HITECH Act, and the Final Omnibus Rule as well as the Alcohol and Drug Abuse 
patient records confidentiality law 42 CFR Part 2, and any other applicable state or federal law or 
regulation. 42 CFR section 2.1(b)(2)(B) allows for the disclosure of such records to qualified personnel 
for the purpose of conducting management or financial audits, or program evaluation. 42 CFR Section 
2.53(d) provides that patient identifying information disclosed under this section may be disclosed only 
back to the program from which it was obtained and used only to carry out an audit or evaluation 
purpose or to investigate or prosecute criminal or other activities, as authorized by an appropriate court 
order. 

 
E. The terms used in this Addendum, but not otherwise defined, shall have the same meanings as those 

terms have in the HIPAA regulations.  Any reference to statutory or regulatory language shall be to 
such language as in effect or as amended. 

 
II. Definitions 

 
A. Breach shall have the meaning given to such term under HIPAA, the HITECH Act, the HIPAA 

regulations, and the Final Omnibus Rule. 
 
B. Business Associate shall have the meaning given to such term under HIPAA, the HITECH Act, the 

HIPAA regulations, and the final Omnibus Rule. 
 
C. Covered Entity shall have the meaning given to such term under HIPAA, the HITECH Act, the HIPAA 

regulations, and Final Omnibus Rule. 
 
D. Electronic Health Record shall have the meaning given to such term in the HITECH Act, including, but 

not limited to, 42 U.S.C Section 17921 and implementing regulations. 
 



County of Inyo  
19-96163 

Page 2 of 15 
Addendum B 

HIPAA Business Associate Addendum 
 

 
DHCS HIPAA BAA 2/15 

E. Electronic Protected Health Information (ePHI) means individually identifiable health information 
transmitted by electronic media or maintained in electronic media, including but not limited to electronic 
media as set forth under 45 CFR section 160.103. 

 
F. Individually Identifiable Health Information means health information, including demographic information 

collected from an individual, that is created or received by a health care provider, health plan, employer 
or health care clearinghouse, and relates to the past, present or future physical or mental health or 
condition of an individual, the provision of health care to an individual, or the past, present, or future 
payment for the provision of health care to an individual, that identifies the individual or where there is a 
reasonable basis to believe the information can be used to identify the individual, as set forth under 45 
CFR section 160.103. 

 
G. Privacy Rule shall mean the HIPAA Regulation that is found at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164. 
 
H. Personal Information shall have the meaning given to such term in California Civil Code section 

1798.29. 
 
I. Protected Health Information means individually identifiable health information that is transmitted by 

electronic media, maintained in electronic media, or is transmitted or maintained in any other form or 
medium, as set forth under 45 CFR section 160.103. 

 
J. Required by law, as set forth under 45 CFR section 164.103, means a mandate contained in law that 

compels an entity to make a use or disclosure of PHI that is enforceable in a court of law.  This 
includes, but is not limited to, court orders and court-ordered warrants, subpoenas or summons issued 
by a court, grand jury, a governmental or tribal inspector general, or an administrative body authorized 
to require the production of information, and a civil or an authorized investigative demand.  It also 
includes Medicare conditions of participation with respect to health care providers participating in the 
program, and statutes or regulations that require the production of information, including statutes or 
regulations that require such information if payment is sought under a government program providing 
public benefits. 

 
K. Secretary means the Secretary of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services ("HHS") or the 

Secretary's designee. 
 
L. Security Incident means the attempted or successful unauthorized access, use, disclosure, 

modification, or destruction of PHI or PI, or confidential data that is essential to the ongoing operation of 
the Business Associate’s organization and intended for internal use; or interference with system 
operations in an information system. 

 
M. Security Rule shall mean the HIPAA regulation that is found at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164. 
 
N. Unsecured PHI shall have the meaning given to such term under the HITECH Act, 42 U.S.C. section 

17932(h), any guidance issued pursuant to such Act, and the HIPAA regulations. 
 

III. Terms of Agreement 
 
A. Permitted Uses and Disclosures of PHI by Business Associate 

 
Permitted Uses and Disclosures.  Except as otherwise indicated in this Addendum, Business 
Associate may use or disclose PHI only to perform functions, activities or services specified in this 
Agreement, for, or on behalf of DHCS, provided that such use or disclosure would not violate the 



County of Inyo  
19-96163 

Page 3 of 15 
Addendum B 

HIPAA Business Associate Addendum 
 

 
DHCS HIPAA BAA 2/15 

HIPAA regulations, if done by DHCS. Any such use or disclosure must, to the extent practicable, be 
limited to the limited data set, as defined in 45 CFR section 164.514(e)(2), or, if needed, to the 
minimum necessary to accomplish the intended purpose of such use or disclosure, in compliance with 
the HITECH Act and any guidance issued pursuant to such Act, the HIPAA regulations, the Final 
Omnibus Rule and 42 CFR Part 2. 
 
1. Specific Use and Disclosure Provisions.  Except as otherwise indicated in this Addendum, 

Business Associate may: 
 
a. Use and disclose for management and administration.  Use and disclose  PHI for the proper 

management and administration of the Business Associate provided that such disclosures are 
required by law, or the Business Associate obtains reasonable assurances from the person to 
whom the information is disclosed that it will remain confidential and will be used or further 
disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was disclosed to the person, 
and the person notifies the Business Associate of any instances of which it is aware that the 
confidentiality of the information has been breached. 

 
b. Provision of Data Aggregation Services.  Use PHI to provide data aggregation services to 

DHCS.  Data aggregation means the combining of PHI created or received by the Business 
Associate on behalf of DHCS with PHI received by the Business Associate in its capacity as the 
Business Associate of another covered entity, to permit data analyses that relate to the health 
care operations of DHCS. 

 
B. Prohibited Uses and Disclosures 

 
1. Business Associate shall not disclose PHI about an individual to a health plan for payment or health 

care operations purposes if the PHI pertains solely to a health care item or service for which the 
health care provider involved has been paid out of pocket in full and the individual requests such 
restriction, in accordance with 42 U.S.C. section 17935(a) and 45 CFR section 164.522(a).   

 
2. Business Associate shall not directly or indirectly receive remuneration in exchange for PHI, except 

with the prior written consent of DHCS and as permitted by 42 U.S.C. section 17935(d)(2).  
 
C. Responsibilities of Business Associate 

 
Business Associate agrees: 
 
1. Nondisclosure.  Not to use or disclose Protected Health Information (PHI) other than as permitted 

or required by this Agreement or as required by law. 
 
2. Safeguards.  To implement administrative, physical, and technical safeguards that reasonably and 

appropriately protect the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of the PHI, including electronic 
PHI, that it creates, receives, maintains, uses or transmits on behalf of DHCS, in compliance with 
45 CFR sections 164.308, 164.310 and 164.312, and to prevent use or disclosure of PHI other than 
as provided for by this Agreement. Business Associate shall implement reasonable and appropriate 
policies and procedures to comply with the standards, implementation specifications and other 
requirements of 45 CFR section 164, subpart C, in compliance with 45 CFR section 164.316. 
Business Associate shall develop and maintain a written information privacy and security program 
that includes administrative, technical and physical safeguards appropriate to the size and 
complexity of the Business Associate’s operations and the nature and scope of its activities, and 



County of Inyo  
19-96163 

Page 4 of 15 
Addendum B 

HIPAA Business Associate Addendum 
 

 
DHCS HIPAA BAA 2/15 

which incorporates the requirements of section 3, Security, below.  Business Associate will provide 
DHCS with its current and updated policies. 

 
3. Security.  To take any and all steps necessary to ensure the continuous security of all 

computerized data systems containing PHI and/or PI, and to protect paper documents containing 
PHI and/or PI. These steps shall include, at a minimum: 
 
a. Complying with all of the data system security precautions listed in Attachment A, the Business 

Associate Data Security Requirements; 
 
b. Achieving and maintaining compliance with the HIPAA Security Rule (45 CFR Parts 160 and 

164), as necessary in conducting operations on behalf of DHCS under this Agreement; 
 
c. Providing a level and scope of security that is at least comparable to the level and scope of 

security established by the Office of Management and Budget in OMB Circular No. A-130, 
Appendix III - Security of Federal Automated Information Systems, which sets forth guidelines 
for automated information systems in Federal agencies; and 
 

d. In case of a conflict between any of the security standards contained in any of these 
enumerated sources of security standards, the most stringent shall apply.  The most stringent 
means that safeguard which provides the highest level of protection to PHI from unauthorized 
disclosure.  Further, Business Associate must comply with changes to these standards that 
occur after the effective date of this Agreement. 

 
Business Associate shall designate a Security Officer to oversee its data security program who 
shall be responsible for carrying out the requirements of this section and for communicating on 
security matters with DHCS. 

 
D. Mitigation of Harmful Effects.  To mitigate, to the extent practicable, any harmful effect that is known 

to Business Associate of a use or disclosure of PHI by Business Associate or its subcontractors in 
violation of the requirements of this Addendum. 

 
E. Business Associate’s Agents and Subcontractors. 

 
1. To enter into written agreements with any agents, including subcontractors and vendors, to whom 

Business Associate provides PHI or PI received from or created or received by Business Associate 
on behalf of DHCS, that impose the same restrictions and conditions on such agents, 
subcontractors and vendors that apply to Business Associate with respect to such PHI and PI under 
this Addendum, and that comply with all applicable provisions of HIPAA, the HITECH Act the 
HIPAA regulations, and the Final Omnibus Rule, including the requirement that any agents, 
subcontractors or vendors implement reasonable and appropriate administrative, physical, and 
technical safeguards to protect such PHI and PI. Business associates are directly liable under the 
HIPAA Rules and subject to civil and, in some cases, criminal penalties for making uses and 
disclosures of protected health information that are not authorized by its contract or required by law. 
A business associate also is directly liable and subject to civil penalties for failing to safeguard 
electronic protected health information in accordance with the HIPAA Security Rule.  A “business 
associate” also is a subcontractor that creates, receives, maintains, or transmits protected health 
information on behalf of another business associate. Business Associate shall incorporate, when 
applicable, the relevant provisions of this Addendum into each subcontract or subaward to such 
agents, subcontractors and vendors, including the requirement that any security incidents or 
breaches of unsecured PHI or PI be reported to Business Associate.  



County of Inyo  
19-96163 

Page 5 of 15 
Addendum B 

HIPAA Business Associate Addendum 
 

 
DHCS HIPAA BAA 2/15 

 
2. In accordance with 45 CFR section 164.504(e)(1)(ii), upon Business Associate’s knowledge of a 

material breach or violation by its subcontractor of the agreement between Business Associate and 
the subcontractor, Business Associate shall: 
 
a. Provide an opportunity for the subcontractor to cure the breach or end the violation and 

terminate the agreement if the subcontractor does not cure the breach or end the violation 
within the time specified by DHCS; or 

b. Immediately terminate the agreement if the subcontractor has breached a material term of the 
agreement and cure is not possible. 

 
F. Availability of Information to DHCS and Individuals.  To provide access and information: 

 
1. To provide access as DHCS may require, and in the time and manner designated by DHCS (upon 

reasonable notice and during Business Associate’s normal business hours) to PHI in a Designated 
Record Set, to DHCS (or, as directed by DHCS), to an Individual, in accordance with 45 CFR 
section 164.524.  Designated Record Set means the group of records maintained for DHCS that 
includes medical, dental and billing records about individuals; enrollment, payment, claims 
adjudication, and case or medical management systems maintained for DHCS health plans; or 
those records used to make decisions about individuals on behalf of DHCS.  Business Associate 
shall use the forms and processes developed by DHCS for this purpose and shall respond to 
requests for access to records transmitted by DHCS within fifteen (15) calendar days of receipt of 
the request by producing the records or verifying that there are none.   

 
2. If Business Associate maintains an Electronic Health Record with PHI, and an individual requests a 

copy of such information in an electronic format, Business Associate shall provide such information 
in an electronic format to enable DHCS to fulfill its obligations under the HITECH Act, including but 
not limited to, 42 U.S.C. section 17935(e).  

 
3. If Business Associate receives data from DHCS that was provided to DHCS by the Social Security 

Administration, upon request by DHCS, Business Associate shall provide DHCS with a list of all 
employees, contractors and agents who have access to the Social Security data, including 
employees, contractors and agents of its subcontractors and agents.  

 
G. Amendment of PHI.  To make any amendment(s) to PHI that DHCS directs or agrees to pursuant to 

45 CFR section 164.526, in the time and manner designated by DHCS. 
 
H. Internal Practices.  To make Business Associate’s internal practices, books and records relating to the 

use and disclosure of PHI received from DHCS, or created or received by Business Associate on behalf 
of DHCS, available to DHCS or to the Secretary of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 
in a time and manner designated by DHCS or by the Secretary, for purposes of determining DHCS’ 
compliance with the HIPAA regulations.  If any information needed for this purpose is in the exclusive 
possession of any other entity or person and the other entity or person fails or refuses to furnish the 
information to Business Associate, Business Associate shall so certify to DHCS and shall set forth the 
efforts it made to obtain the information. 

 



County of Inyo  
19-96163 

Page 6 of 15 
Addendum B 

HIPAA Business Associate Addendum 
 

 
DHCS HIPAA BAA 2/15 

I. Documentation of Disclosures.  To document and make available to DHCS or (at the direction of 
DHCS) to an Individual such disclosures of PHI, and information related to such disclosures, necessary 
to respond to a proper request by the subject Individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, in 
accordance with the HITECH Act and its implementing regulations, including but not limited to 45 CFR 
section 164.528 and 42 U.S.C. section 17935(c).   If Business Associate maintains electronic health 
records for DHCS as of January 1, 2009, Business Associate must provide an accounting of 
disclosures, including those disclosures for treatment, payment or health care operations, effective with 
disclosures on or after January 1, 2014.  If Business Associate acquires electronic health records for 
DHCS after January 1, 2009, Business Associate must provide an accounting of disclosures, including 
those disclosures for treatment, payment or health care operations, effective with disclosures on or 
after the date the electronic health record is acquired, or on or after January 1, 2011, whichever date is 
later.  The electronic accounting of disclosures shall be for disclosures during the three years prior to 
the request for an accounting. 

 
J. Breaches and Security Incidents.  During the term of this Agreement, Business Associate agrees to 

implement reasonable systems for the discovery and prompt reporting of any breach or security 
incident, and to take the following steps: 
 
1. Notice to DHCS.  (1) To notify DHCS immediately upon the discovery of a suspected security 

incident that involves data provided to DHCS by the Social Security Administration.  This notification 
will be by telephone call plus email or fax upon the discovery of the breach.  (2) To notify DHCS 
within 24 hours by email or fax of the discovery of unsecured PHI or PI in electronic media or in 
any other media if the PHI or PI was, or is reasonably believed to have been, accessed or acquired 
by an unauthorized person, any suspected security incident, intrusion or unauthorized access, use 
or disclosure of PHI or PI in violation of this Agreement and this Addendum, or potential loss of 
confidential data affecting this Agreement.  A breach shall be treated as discovered by Business 
Associate as of the first day on which the breach is known, or by exercising reasonable diligence 
would have been known, to any person (other than the person committing the breach) who is an 
employee, officer or other agent of Business Associate. 
 
Notice shall be provided to the DHCS Program Contract Manager, the DHCS Privacy Officer and 
the DHCS Information Security Officer.  If the incident occurs after business hours or on a weekend 
or holiday and involves data provided to DHCS by the Social Security Administration, notice shall 
be provided by calling the DHCS EITS Service Desk.  Notice shall be made using the “DHCS 
Privacy Incident Report” form, including all information known at the time.   Business Associate 
shall use the most current version of this form, which is posted on the DHCS Privacy Office website 
(www.dhcs.ca.gov, then select “Privacy” in the left column and then “Business Use” near the middle 
of the page) or use this link: 
http://www.dhcs.ca.gov/formsandpubs/laws/priv/Pages/DHCSBusinessAssociatesOnly.aspx   
 
Upon discovery of a breach or suspected security incident, intrusion or unauthorized access, use or 
disclosure of PHI or PI, Business Associate shall take: 
 
a. Prompt corrective action to mitigate any risks or damages involved with the breach and to 

protect the operating environment; and 

b. Any action pertaining to such unauthorized disclosure required by applicable Federal and State 
laws and regulations. 

 

http://www.dhcs.ca.gov/
http://www.dhcs.ca.gov/formsandpubs/laws/priv/Pages/DHCSBusinessAssociatesOnly.aspx


County of Inyo  
19-96163 

Page 7 of 15 
Addendum B 

HIPAA Business Associate Addendum 
 

 
DHCS HIPAA BAA 2/15 

2. Investigation and Investigation Report. To immediately investigate such security incident, 
breach, or unauthorized access, use or disclosure of PHI or PI.  If the initial report did not include all 
of the requested information marked with an asterisk, then within 72 hours of the discovery, 
Business Associate shall submit an updated “DHCS Privacy Incident Report” containing the 
information marked with an asterisk and all other applicable information listed on the form, to the 
extent known at that time, to the DHCS Program Contract Manager, the DHCS Privacy Officer, and 
the DHCS Information Security Officer: 

 
3. Complete Report.  To provide a complete report of the investigation to the DHCS Program 

Contract Manager, the DHCS Privacy Officer, and the DHCS Information Security Officer within ten 
(10) working days of the discovery of the breach or unauthorized use or disclosure.  If all of the 
required information was not included in either the initial report, or the Investigation Report, then a 
separate Complete Report must be submitted.  The report shall be submitted on the “DHCS Privacy 
Incident Report” form and shall include an assessment of all known factors relevant to a 
determination of whether a breach occurred under applicable provisions of HIPAA, the HITECH Act, 
the HIPAA regulations and/or state law.  The report shall also include a full, detailed corrective 
action plan, including information on measures that were taken to halt and/or contain the improper 
use or disclosure.  If DHCS requests information in addition to that listed on the ”DHCS Privacy 
Incident Report” form, Business Associate shall make reasonable efforts to provide DHCS with 
such information.  If necessary, a Supplemental Report may be used to submit revised or additional 
information after the completed report is submitted, by submitting the revised or additional 
information on an updated “DHCS Privacy Incident Report” form.  DHCS will review and approve or 
disapprove the determination of whether a breach occurred, is reportable to the appropriate entities, 
if individual notifications are required, and the corrective action plan. 

 
4. Notification of Individuals.  If the cause of a breach of PHI or PI is attributable to Business 

Associate or its subcontractors, agents or vendors, Business Associate shall notify individuals of the 
breach or unauthorized use or disclosure when notification is required under state or federal law 
and shall pay any costs of such notifications, as well as any costs associated with the breach.  The 
notifications shall comply with the requirements set forth in 42 U.S.C. section 17932 and its 
implementing regulations, including, but not limited to, the requirement that the notifications be 
made without unreasonable delay and in no event later than 60 calendar days.  The DHCS 
Program Contract Manager, the DHCS Privacy Officer, and the DHCS Information Security Officer 
shall approve the time, manner and content of any such notifications and their review and approval 
must be obtained before the notifications are made. 

 
5. Responsibility for Reporting of Breaches.  If the cause of a breach of PHI or PI is attributable to 

Business Associate or its agents, subcontractors or vendors, Business Associate is responsible for 
all required reporting of the breach as specified in 42 U.S.C. section 17932 and its implementing 
regulations, including notification to media outlets and to the Secretary.  If a breach of unsecured 
PHI involves more than 500 residents of the State of California or its jurisdiction, Business 
Associate shall notify the Secretary of the breach immediately upon discovery of the breach.  If 
Business Associate has reason to believe that duplicate reporting of the same breach or incident 
may occur because its subcontractors, agents or vendors may report the breach or incident to 
DHCS in addition to Business Associate, Business Associate shall notify DHCS, and DHCS and 
Business Associate may take appropriate action to prevent duplicate reporting.  The breach 
reporting requirements of this paragraph are in addition to the reporting requirements set forth in 
subsection 1, above. 

 
6. DHCS Contact Information.  To direct communications to the above referenced DHCS staff, the 

Contractor shall initiate contact as indicated herein.  DHCS reserves the right to make changes to 



County of Inyo  
19-96163 

Page 8 of 15 
Addendum B 

HIPAA Business Associate Addendum 
 

 
DHCS HIPAA BAA 2/15 

the contact information below by giving written notice to the Contractor.  Said changes shall not 
require an amendment to this Addendum or the Agreement to which it is incorporated. 

 

DHCS Program 
Contract Manager 

DHCS Privacy Officer DHCS Information Security Officer 

See the Scope of Work 
exhibit for Program 
Contract Manager 
information  

Privacy Officer 
c/o: Office of HIPAA Compliance 
Department of Health Care Services 
P.O. Box 997413, MS 4722 
Sacramento, CA 95899-7413 
 

Email: privacyofficer@dhcs.ca.gov 
 

Telephone:  (916) 445-4646 
 
Fax: (916) 440-7680 

Information Security Officer 
DHCS Information Security Office 
P.O. Box 997413, MS 6400 
Sacramento, CA 95899-7413 
 

Email:  iso@dhcs.ca.gov 
Fax:     (916) 440-5537 
 

Telephone:  EITS Service Desk 
 (916) 440-7000 or 
 (800) 579-0874 

 

K. Termination of Agreement.  In accordance with Section 13404(b) of the HITECH Act and to the extent 
required by the HIPAA regulations, if Business Associate knows of a material breach or violation by 
DHCS of this Addendum, it shall take the following steps: 
 
1. Provide an opportunity for DHCS to cure the breach or end the violation and terminate the 

Agreement if DHCS does not cure the breach or end the violation within the time specified by 
Business Associate; or 

2. Immediately terminate the Agreement if DHCS has breached a material term of the Addendum and 
cure is not possible. 

L. Due Diligence.  Business Associate shall exercise due diligence and shall take reasonable steps to 
ensure that it remains in compliance with this Addendum and is in compliance with applicable 
provisions of HIPAA, the HITECH Act and the HIPAA regulations, and that its agents, subcontractors 
and vendors are in compliance with their obligations as required by this Addendum. 

 
M.  Sanctions and/or Penalties.  Business Associate understands that a failure to comply with the 

provisions of HIPAA, the HITECH Act and the HIPAA regulations that are applicable to Business 
Associate may result in the imposition of sanctions and/or penalties on Business Associate under 
HIPAA, the HITECH Act and the HIPAA regulations. 

 
IV. Obligations of DHCS 

 
DHCS agrees to: 
 
A. Notice of Privacy Practices.  Provide Business Associate with the Notice of Privacy Practices that 

DHCS produces in accordance with 45 CFR section 164.520, as well as any changes to such notice.  
Visit the DHCS Privacy Office to view the most current Notice of Privacy Practices at: 
http://www.dhcs.ca.gov/formsandpubs/laws/priv/Pages/default.aspx or the DHCS website at 
www.dhcs.ca.gov (select “Privacy in the left column and “Notice of Privacy Practices” on the right side 
of the page). 

 
B. Permission by Individuals for Use and Disclosure of PHI.  Provide the Business Associate with any 

changes in, or revocation of, permission by an Individual to use or disclose PHI, if such changes affect 
the Business Associate’s permitted or required uses and disclosures. 

 

mailto:privacyofficer@dhcs.ca.gov
mailto:iso@dhcs.ca.gov
http://www.dhcs.ca.gov/


County of Inyo  
19-96163 

Page 9 of 15 
Addendum B 

HIPAA Business Associate Addendum 
 

 
DHCS HIPAA BAA 2/15 

C. Notification of Restrictions.  Notify the Business Associate of any restriction to the use or disclosure 
of PHI that DHCS has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR section 164.522, to the extent that such 
restriction may affect the Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI. 

 
D. Requests Conflicting with HIPAA Rules.  Not request the Business Associate to use or disclose PHI 

in any manner that would not be permissible under the HIPAA regulations if done by DHCS. 
 
V. Audits, Inspection and Enforcement 

 
A. From time to time, DHCS may inspect the facilities, systems, books and records of Business Associate 

to monitor compliance with this Agreement and this Addendum.  Business Associate shall promptly 
remedy any violation of any provision of this Addendum and shall certify the same to the DHCS Privacy 
Officer in writing.  The fact that DHCS inspects, or fails to inspect, or has the right to inspect, Business 
Associate’s facilities, systems and procedures does not relieve Business Associate of its responsibility 
to comply with this Addendum, nor does DHCS’: 

1. Failure to detect or 
 
2. Detection, but failure to notify Business Associate or require Business Associate’s remediation of 

any unsatisfactory practices constitute acceptance of such practice or a waiver of DHCS’ 
enforcement rights under this Agreement and this Addendum. 

 
B. If Business Associate is the subject of an audit, compliance review, or complaint investigation by the 

Secretary or the Office of Civil Rights, U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, that is related 
to the performance of its obligations pursuant to this HIPAA Business Associate Addendum, Business 
Associate shall notify DHCS and provide DHCS with a copy of any PHI or PI that Business Associate 
provides to the Secretary or the Office of Civil Rights concurrently with providing such PHI or PI to the 
Secretary.  Business Associate is responsible for any civil penalties assessed due to an audit or 
investigation of Business Associate, in accordance with 42 U.S.C. section 17934(c). 

 
VI. Termination 

 
A. Term.  The Term of this Addendum shall commence as of the effective date of this Addendum and 

shall extend beyond the termination of the contract and shall terminate when all the PHI provided by 
DHCS to Business Associate, or created or received by Business Associate on behalf of DHCS, is 
destroyed or returned to DHCS, in accordance with 45 CFR 164.504(e)(2)(ii)(I). 

 
B. Termination for Cause.  In accordance with 45 CFR section 164.504(e)(1)(ii), upon DHCS’ knowledge 

of a material breach or violation of this Addendum by Business Associate, DHCS shall: 
 
1. Provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the breach or end the violation and terminate 

this Agreement if Business Associate does not cure the breach or end the violation within the time 
specified by DHCS; or 

2. Immediately terminate this Agreement if Business Associate has breached a material term of this 
Addendum and cure is not possible. 



County of Inyo  
19-96163 

Page 10 of 15 
Addendum B 

HIPAA Business Associate Addendum 
 

 
DHCS HIPAA BAA 2/15 

C. Judicial or Administrative Proceedings.  Business Associate will notify DHCS if it is named as a 
defendant in a criminal proceeding for a violation of HIPAA.  DHCS may terminate this Agreement if 
Business Associate is found guilty of a criminal violation of HIPAA.  DHCS may terminate this 
Agreement if a finding or stipulation that the Business Associate has violated any standard or 
requirement of HIPAA, or other security or privacy laws is made in any administrative or civil 
proceeding in which the Business Associate is a party or has been joined. 

 
D. Effect of Termination.  Upon termination or expiration of this Agreement for any reason, Business 

Associate shall return or destroy all PHI received from DHCS (or created or received by Business 
Associate on behalf of DHCS) that Business Associate still maintains in any form, and shall retain no 
copies of such PHI.  If return or destruction is not feasible, Business Associate shall notify DHCS of the 
conditions that make the return or destruction infeasible, and DHCS and Business Associate shall 
determine the terms and conditions under which Business Associate may retain the PHI.  Business 
Associate shall continue to extend the protections of this Addendum to such PHI, and shall limit further 
use of such PHI to those purposes that make the return or destruction of such PHI infeasible.  This 
provision shall apply to PHI that is in the possession of subcontractors or agents of Business Associate. 

 
VII. Miscellaneous Provisions 

 
A. Disclaimer.  DHCS makes no warranty or representation that compliance by Business Associate with 

this Addendum, HIPAA or the HIPAA regulations will be adequate or satisfactory for Business 
Associate’s own purposes or that any information in Business Associate’s possession or control, or 
transmitted or received by Business Associate, is or will be secure from unauthorized use or disclosure.  
Business Associate is solely responsible for all decisions made by Business Associate regarding the 
safeguarding of PHI. 

 
B. Amendment.  The parties acknowledge that federal and state laws relating to electronic data security 

and privacy are rapidly evolving and that amendment of this Addendum may be required to provide for 
procedures to ensure compliance with such developments.  The parties specifically agree to take such 
action as is necessary to implement the standards and requirements of HIPAA, the HITECH Act, the 
HIPAA regulations and other applicable laws relating to the security or privacy of PHI.  Upon DHCS’ 
request, Business Associate agrees to promptly enter into negotiations with DHCS concerning an 
amendment to this Addendum embodying written assurances consistent with the standards and 
requirements of HIPAA, the HITECH Act, the HIPAA regulations or other applicable laws.  DHCS may 
terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice in the event: 
 
1. Business Associate does not promptly enter into negotiations to amend this Addendum when 

requested by DHCS pursuant to this Section; or 
 
2. Business Associate does not enter into an amendment providing assurances regarding the 

safeguarding of PHI that DHCS in its sole discretion, deems sufficient to satisfy the standards and 
requirements of HIPAA and the HIPAA regulations. 

 
C. Assistance in Litigation or Administrative Proceedings.  Business Associate shall make itself and 

any subcontractors, employees or agents assisting Business Associate in the performance of its 
obligations under this Agreement, available to DHCS at no cost to DHCS to testify as witnesses, or 
otherwise, in the event of litigation or administrative proceedings being commenced against DHCS, its 
directors, officers or employees based upon claimed violation of HIPAA, the HIPAA regulations or other 
laws relating to security and privacy, which involves inactions or actions by the Business Associate, 
except where Business Associate or its subcontractor, employee or agent is a named adverse party. 

 



County of Inyo  
19-96163 

Page 11 of 15 
Addendum B 

HIPAA Business Associate Addendum 
 

 
DHCS HIPAA BAA 2/15 

D. No Third-Party Beneficiaries.  Nothing express or implied in the terms and conditions of this 
Addendum is intended to confer, nor shall anything herein confer, upon any person other than DHCS or 
Business Associate and their respective successors or assignees, any rights, remedies, obligations or 
liabilities whatsoever. 

 
E. Interpretation.  The terms and conditions in this Addendum shall be interpreted as broadly as 

necessary to implement and comply with HIPAA, the HITECH Act, the HIPAA regulations and 
applicable state laws.  The parties agree that any ambiguity in the terms and conditions of this 
Addendum shall be resolved in favor of a meaning that complies and is consistent with HIPAA, the 
HITECH Act and the HIPAA regulations. 

 
F. Regulatory References.  A reference in the terms and conditions of this Addendum to a section in the 

HIPAA regulations means the section as in effect or as amended. 
 
G. Survival.  The respective rights and obligations of Business Associate under Section VI.D of this 

Addendum shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement. 
 
H. No Waiver of Obligations.  No change, waiver or discharge of any liability or obligation hereunder on 

any one or more occasions shall be deemed a waiver of performance of any continuing or other 
obligation, or shall prohibit enforcement of any obligation, on any other occasion. 

 



County of Inyo  
19-96163 

Page 12 of 15 
Addendum B 

HIPAA Business Associate Addendum 
 

 
DHCS HIPAA BAA 2/15 

Attachment A 
Business Associate Data Security Requirements 
 
I. Personnel Controls 

 
A. Employee Training.  All workforce members who assist in the performance of functions or 

activities on behalf of DHCS, or access or disclose DHCS PHI or PI must complete information 
privacy and security training, at least annually, at Business Associate’s expense. Each workforce 
member who receives information privacy and security training must sign a certification, indicating 
the member’s name and the date on which the training was completed.  These certifications must 
be retained for a period of six (6) years following contract termination. 

 
B.  Employee Discipline.  Appropriate sanctions must be applied against workforce members who fail 

to comply with privacy policies and procedures or any provisions of these requirements, including 
termination of employment where appropriate. 

 
C. Confidentiality Statement.  All persons that will be working with DHCS PHI or PI must sign a 

confidentiality statement that includes, at a minimum, General Use, Security and Privacy 
Safeguards, Unacceptable Use, and Enforcement Policies.  The statement must be signed by the 
workforce member prior to access to DHCS PHI or PI.  The statement must be renewed annually.  
The Contractor shall retain each person’s written confidentiality statement for DHCS inspection for a 
period of six (6) years following contract termination. 

 
D. Background Check.  Before a member of the workforce may access DHCS PHI or PI, a thorough 

background check of that worker must be conducted, with evaluation of the results to assure that 
there is no indication that the worker may present a risk to the security or integrity of confidential 
data or a risk for theft or misuse of confidential data.  The Contractor shall retain each workforce 
member’s background check documentation for a period of three (3) years following contract 
termination. 
 

II. Technical Security Controls 
 
A. Workstation/Laptop encryption.  All workstations and laptops that process and/or store DHCS 

PHI or PI must be encrypted using a FIPS 140-2 certified algorithm which is 128bit or higher, such 
as Advanced Encryption Standard (AES).   The encryption solution must be full disk unless 
approved by the DHCS Information Security Office. 

 
B. Server Security. Servers containing unencrypted DHCS PHI or PI must have sufficient 

administrative, physical, and technical controls in place to protect that data, based upon a risk 
assessment/system security review. 

 
C. Minimum Necessary. Only the minimum necessary amount of DHCS PHI or PI required to perform 

necessary business functions may be copied, downloaded, or exported. 
 
D. Removable media devices.  All electronic files that contain DHCS PHI or PI data must be 

encrypted when stored on any removable media or portable device (i.e. USB thumb drives, floppies, 
CD/DVD, smartphones, backup tapes etc.).  Encryption must be a FIPS 140-2 certified algorithm 
which is 128bit or higher, such as AES. 

 



County of Inyo  
19-96163 

Page 13 of 15 
Addendum B 

HIPAA Business Associate Addendum 
 

 
DHCS HIPAA BAA 2/15 

E. Antivirus software.  All workstations, laptops and other systems that process and/or store DHCS 
PHI or PI must install and actively use comprehensive anti-virus software solution with automatic 
updates scheduled at least daily. 

 
F. Patch Management.  All workstations, laptops and other systems that process and/or store DHCS 

PHI or PI must have critical security patches applied, with system reboot if necessary.  There must 
be a documented patch management process which determines installation timeframe based on 
risk assessment and vendor recommendations.  At a maximum, all applicable patches must be 
installed within 30 days of vendor release. 

 
G. User IDs and Password Controls.  All users must be issued a unique user name for accessing 

DHCS PHI or PI.  Username must be promptly disabled, deleted, or the password changed upon 
the transfer or termination of an employee with knowledge of the password, at maximum within 24 
hours. Passwords are not to be shared.  Passwords must be at least eight characters and must be 
a non-dictionary word.  Passwords must not be stored in readable format on the computer.  
Passwords must be changed every 90 days, preferably every 60 days.  Passwords must be 
changed if revealed or compromised.  Passwords must be composed of characters from at least 
three of the following four groups from the standard keyboard: 
 
 Upper case letters (A-Z) 
 Lower case letters (a-z) 
 Arabic numerals (0-9) 
 Non-alphanumeric characters (punctuation symbols) 

 
H. Data Destruction.  When no longer needed, all DHCS PHI or PI must be cleared, purged, or 

destroyed consistent with NIST Special Publication 800-88, Guidelines for Media Sanitization such 
that the PHI or PI cannot be retrieved. 

 
I. System Timeout.  The system providing access to DHCS PHI or PI must provide an automatic 

timeout, requiring re-authentication of the user session after no more than 20 minutes of inactivity. 
 
J. Warning Banners.  All systems providing access to DHCS PHI or PI must display a warning 

banner stating that data is confidential, systems are logged, and system use is for business 
purposes only by authorized users.  User must be directed to log off the system if they do not agree 
with these requirements. 

 
K. System Logging.  The system must maintain an automated audit trail which can identify the user 

or system process which initiates a request for DHCS PHI or PI, or which alters DHCS PHI or PI.  
The audit trail must be date and time stamped, must log both successful and failed accesses, must 
be read only, and must be restricted to authorized users.  If DHCS PHI or PI is stored in a 
database, database logging functionality must be enabled.  Audit trail data must be archived for at 
least 3 years after occurrence. 

 
L. Access Controls.  The system providing access to DHCS PHI or PI must use role based access 

controls for all user authentications, enforcing the principle of least privilege. 



County of Inyo  
19-96163 

Page 14 of 15 
Addendum B 

HIPAA Business Associate Addendum 
 

 
DHCS HIPAA BAA 2/15 

 
M. Transmission encryption.  All data transmissions of DHCS PHI or PI outside the secure internal 

network must be encrypted using a FIPS 140-2 certified algorithm which is 128bit or higher, such as 
AES.  Encryption can be end to end at the network level, or the data files containing PHI can be 
encrypted.  This requirement pertains to any type of PHI or PI in motion such as website access, file 
transfer, and E-Mail. 

 
N. Intrusion Detection. All systems involved in accessing, holding, transporting, and protecting DHCS 

PHI or PI that are accessible via the Internet must be protected by a comprehensive intrusion 
detection and prevention solution. 

 
III. Audit Controls 

 
A. System Security Review.  All systems processing and/or storing DHCS PHI or PI must have at 

least an annual system risk assessment/security review which provides assurance that 
administrative, physical, and technical controls are functioning effectively and providing adequate 
levels of protection.  Reviews should include vulnerability scanning tools. 

 
B. Log Reviews.  All systems processing and/or storing DHCS PHI or PI must have a routine 

procedure in place to review system logs for unauthorized access. 
 
C. Change Control.  All systems processing and/or storing DHCS PHI or PI must have a documented 

change control procedure that ensures separation of duties and protects the confidentiality, integrity 
and availability of data. 

 
IV. Business Continuity / Disaster Recovery Controls 

 
A. Emergency Mode Operation Plan.  Contractor must establish a documented plan to enable 

continuation of critical business processes and protection of the security of electronic DHCS PHI or 
PI in the event of an emergency.  Emergency means any circumstance or situation that causes 
normal computer operations to become unavailable for use in performing the work required under 
this Agreement for more than 24 hours. 

 
B. Data Backup Plan.  Contractor must have established documented procedures to backup DHCS 

PHI to maintain retrievable exact copies of DHCS PHI or PI.  The plan must include a regular 
schedule for making backups, storing backups offsite, an inventory of backup media, and an 
estimate of the amount of time needed to restore DHCS PHI or PI should it be lost.  At a minimum, 
the schedule must be a weekly full backup and monthly offsite storage of DHCS data. 

 
V. Paper Document Controls 

 
A. Supervision of Data.  DHCS PHI or PI in paper form shall not be left unattended at any time, 

unless it is locked in a file cabinet, file room, desk or office.  Unattended means that information is 
not being observed by an employee authorized to access the information.  DHCS PHI or PI in paper 
form shall not be left unattended at any time in vehicles or planes and shall not be checked in 
baggage on commercial airplanes. 

 
B. Escorting Visitors.  Visitors to areas where DHCS PHI or PI is contained shall be escorted and 

DHCS PHI or PI shall be kept out of sight while visitors are in the area. 
 



County of Inyo  
19-96163 

Page 15 of 15 
Addendum B 

HIPAA Business Associate Addendum 
 

 
DHCS HIPAA BAA 2/15 

C. Confidential Destruction.  DHCS PHI or PI must be disposed of through confidential means, such 
as cross cut shredding and pulverizing. 

 
D. Removal of Data.  DHCS PHI or PI must not be removed from the premises of the Contractor 

except with express written permission of DHCS. 
 
E. Faxing.  Faxes containing DHCS PHI or PI shall not be left unattended and fax machines shall be 

in secure areas.  Faxes shall contain a confidentiality statement notifying persons receiving faxes in 
error to destroy them.  Fax numbers shall be verified with the intended recipient before sending the 
fax. 

 
F. Mailing.  Mailings of DHCS PHI or PI shall be sealed and secured from damage or inappropriate 

viewing of PHI or PI to the extent possible.  Mailings which include 500 or more individually 
identifiable records of DHCS PHI or PI in a single package shall be sent using a tracked mailing 
method which includes verification of delivery and receipt, unless the prior written permission of 
DHCS to use another method is obtained.  



General Terms and Conditions for Interagency Agreements 
GIA-610 

1. APPROVAL: This Agreement is not valid until signed by both parties 
and approved by the Department of General Services, if required. 

2. AUDIT: The agency performing work under this Agreement agrees that the 
awarding department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of 
State Audits, or their designated representative shall have the right to 
review and to copy any records and supporting documentation pertaining 
to the performance of this Agreement if it exceeds $10,000. The agency 
performing work agrees to maintain such records for possible audit for a 
minimum of three (3) years after final payment, unless a longer period of 
record retention is stipulated. 

3. PAYMENT: Costs for this Agreement shall be computed in accordance 
with State Administrative Manual Section 8752 and 8752.1. 

4. AMENDMENT: No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement 
shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the parties, and approved 
as required. No oral understanding or agreement not incorporated in the 
Agreement is binding on any of the parties. 

5. SUBCONTRACTING: All subcontracting must comply with the 
requirements of the State Contracting Manual, Section 3.06. 

6. ADVANCE PAYMENT: The parties to this interagency agreement may 
agree to the advancing of funds as provided in Government Code 
Sections 11257 through 11263. 

7. DISPUTES: The agency performing work under this Agreement shall 
continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute. 

8. TIMELINESS: Time is of the essence in this Agreement. 

9. NON-PAYMENT OF INVOICES – FUND TRANSACTION REQUEST: In 
accordance with Government Code Section 11255, the parties agree that 
when an invoice is not paid by the requested due date to the Contractor 
(agency providing the service) and the invoice is not disputed by the 
contracting Department (agency receiving the service), Contractor may 
send the contracting Department a 30-day notice that it intends to initiate a 
transfer of funds through a Transaction Request sent to the State 
Controller’s Office. To facilitate a Transaction Request should one be 
needed, the contracting Department shall no later than 10 business days 
following execution of this agreement provide data to the Contractor for the 
appropriation to be charged including: fund number, organization code, 
fiscal year, reference, category or program, and, if applicable, element, 
component, and task. 



Contractor Certification Clause 
CCC 04/2017 

CERTIFICATION 

I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am 
duly authorized to legally bind the prospective Contractor to the clause(s) listed 
below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) Federal ID Number 

By (Authorized Signature) 

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE: 

Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program 
requirements. (GC 12990 (a-f) and CCR, Title 2, Section 8103) (Not applicable to 
public entities.)  

DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS: 

Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 
1990 and will provide a drug-free workplace by taking the following actions:  

a) Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, 
distribution, dispensation, possession or use of a controlled substance is 
prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for 
violations.  

b) Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about:  

1. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;  

2. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 

3. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance 

programs; and, 



4. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations. 

c)  Provide that every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 

1. receive a copy of the company's drug-free policy statement; and, 

2. agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a 
condition of employment on the Agreement. 

Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments 
under the Agreement or termination of the Agreement or both and Contractor may 
be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if the department 
determines that any of the following has occurred: (1) the Contractor has made 
false certification, or violated the certification by failing to carry out the 
requirements as noted above. (GC 8350 et seq.)  

NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION: 

Contractor certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of 
contempt of court by a Federal court has been issued against Contractor within the 
immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor's failure to comply 
with an order of a Federal court which orders Contractor to comply with an order of 
the National Labor Relations Board. (PCC 10296) (Not applicable to public 
entities.) 

CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO 
REQUIREMENT: 

Contractor hereby certifies that contractor will comply with the requirements of 
Section 6072 of the Business and Professions Code, effective January 1, 2003. 

Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of 
hours of pro bono legal services during each year of the contract equal to the 
lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the firm’s offices in 
the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any 
contract period of less than a full year or 10% of its contract with the State. 

Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state 
contract for legal services, and may be taken into account when determining the 
award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS: 

Contractor hereby declares that it is not an expatriate corporation or subsidiary of 
an expatriate corporation within the meaning of Public Contract Code Section 
10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the State of California. 

SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT: 

a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, 
garments or corresponding accessories, or the procurement of equipment, 
materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a public works 
contract, declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or 
corresponding accessories, equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to 
the state pursuant to the contract have been laundered or produced in 



whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured 
labor under penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of 
children in sweatshop labor, or with the benefit of sweatshop labor, forced 
labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive forms of 
child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor. The contractor 
further declares under penalty of perjury that they adhere to the Sweatfree 
Code of Conduct as set forth on the California Department of Industrial 
Relations website and Public Contract Code Section 6108. 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to 
the contractor’s records, documents, agents or employees, or premises if 
reasonably required by authorized officials of the contracting agency, the 
Department of Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to 
determine the contractor’s compliance with the requirements under 
paragraph (a). 

DOMESTIC PARTNERS: 

For contracts of $100,000 or more, Contractor certifies that Contractor is in 
compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3. 

GENDER IDENTITY: 

For contracts of $100,000 or more, Contractor certifies that Contractor is in 
compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.35. 

DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of 
California. 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST: 

Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions regarding current or former state 
employees. If Contractor has any questions on the status of any person rendering services 
or involved with the Agreement, the awarding agency must be contacted immediately for 
clarification. 

a) Current State Employees (PCC 10410):  

1. No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or 
enterprise from which the officer or employee receives 
compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored or 
funded by any state agency, unless the employment, activity or 
enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  

2. No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an 
independent contractor with any state agency to provide goods or 
services. 

b)  Former State Employees (PCC 10411):  

1. For the two-year period from the date he or she left state 
employment, no former state officer or employee may enter into a 
contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, 
transactions, planning, arrangements or any part of the decision-

http://www.dir.ca.gov/


making process relevant to the contract while employed in any 
capacity by any state agency. 

2. For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state 
employment, no former state officer or employee may enter into a 
contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that 
state agency in a policy-making position in the same general 
subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period 
prior to his or her leaving state service. 

If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by 
Contractor shall render this Agreement void. (PCC 10420)  

Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not 
receive payment other than payment of each meeting of the board or commission, 
payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. (PCC 10430 (e)) 

 LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION: 

Contractor needs to be aware of the provisions which require every employer to be 
insured against liability for Worker's Compensation or to undertake self-insurance 
in accordance with the provisions, and Contractor affirms to comply with such 
provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. 
(Labor Code Section 3700)  

 AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT: 

Contractor assures the State that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities 
Act (ADA) of 1990, which prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, as well 
as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued pursuant to the ADA. (42 U.S.C. 
12101 et seq.)  

 CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE: 

An amendment is required to change the Contractor's name as listed on this 
Agreement. Upon receipt of legal documentation of the name change the State will 
process the amendment. Payment of invoices presented with a new name cannot 
be paid prior to approval of said amendment. 

 CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  

a) When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the 
contracting agencies will be verifying that the contractor is currently qualified 
to do business in California in order to ensure that all obligations due to the 
state are fulfilled.  

b) "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in 
any transaction for the purpose of financial or pecuniary gain or profit. 
Although there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will a 
corporate contractor performing within the state not be subject to the 
franchise tax. 

c) Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of 
California) must be in good standing in order to be qualified to do business 
in California. Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in good 



standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 

 RESOLUTION: 

A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State with a copy 
of a resolution, order, motion, or ordinance of the local governing body which by 
law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing execution of the 
agreement. 

 AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION: 

Under the State laws, the Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or 
resolution not subject to review promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or 
an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desist order not subject to 
review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste 
discharge requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in 
violation of provisions of federal law relating to air or water pollution. 

PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204: 

This form must be completed by all contractors that are not another state agency 
or other government entity. 



County of Inyo

Health & Human Services
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  August 20, 2019 

FROM:  Lucy Vincent 
 
RE:  Approval of Contract with Kings View Corporation for Tele-psychiatry Services 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request your Board ratify and approve the contract between the County of Inyo and the Kings View Corporation 
for tele-psychiatry services in a total amount not to exceed $25,000 for the period of July 1, 2019 to June 30, 
2020 and authorize the HHS Deputy Director of Behavioral Health to sign the contract and the Privacy Officer to 
sign the HIPAA Business Association Agreement, contingent upon the Board’s adoption of the Fiscal Year 2019-
2020 Budget.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
This contract comes to you late as there has been a concerted effort to find a more satisfactory means to meet 
our need for psychiatry services. Services by this provider were used in the last fiscal year and are needed to 
ensure continuity of care while other avenues have been pursued. Medication assessment, support, and 
monitoring are critical components in the array of treatment services. Efforts are made ensure continuity of care 
by having one or two physicians assigned to the County on a consistent basis. We continue to pursue the 
recruitment of a Psychiatrist to our area, but would request permission to use this contract to obtain the needed 
services to ensure continuity while our hybrid tele- and in person-psychiatry contracts are put in place.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could deny ratification of this contract. This could impact our ability to provide critical psychotropic 
medication services in accordance with the requirements of our performance contract with Department of Health 
Care Services.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
California Department of Health Care Services and other physical healthcare providers.
 
FINANCING:
Mental Health Realignment and reimbursement will be pursued for all Medi-Cal eligible services provided. This 
expense is budgeted in Mental Health (045200) in Professional and Special Services (5265). No County General 
Funds.



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Kings View Telepsych Contract FY19-20

























County of Inyo

Health & Human Services
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  August 20, 2019 

FROM:  Rhiannon Baker 
 
RE:  Ratify the Contract between County of Inyo and Crestwood Behavioral Health, Inc. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board ratify and approve the contract between the County of Inyo and Crestwood Behavioral Health, 
Inc. for residential placement for adults in a locked facility or an enhanced board and care in the amount not to 
exceed $22,000 for the period of July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020, contingent upon the Board's adoption of the 
Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Budget, and authorize the Chairperson to sign.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Mental Health currently has one LPS-conserved individual at Crestwood Behavioral Health, Inc. This individual is 
placed in a Crestwood facility in Stockton. This individual had resided in the IMO facility in Vallejo for many years 
but was moved to the Stockton facility due to a change in the designation of the Vallejo facility. Crestwood 
provides specialized services that meet both the physical and emotional needs of this person. Crestwood works 
closely with the deputy conservators and provides treatment updates and planning as appropriate. 

Crestwood has offered excellent service for vulnerable persons. They are committed to providing service in the 
least restrictive setting. The conservatees continue to receive quality treatment in this facility.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to approve this contract. This would jeopardize the placement for the conservatees. 
Appropriate placements are often difficult to obtain and there is no guarantee that another facility that offers 
proper care will be found.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Inyo County Courts.
 
FINANCING:
100% Mental Health Realignment Funds. This contract is budgeted in Mental Health (045200) in Support & Care 
w/1099 (5508). No County General Funds.
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Inyo Contract with Crestwood Behavioral Health
2. Crestwood ARF



































County of Inyo

Clerk of the Board
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  August 20, 2019 

FROM:  Assistant Clerk of the Board 
 
RE:  Approval of Board of Supervisors meeting minutes 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve the minutes of the regular Board of Supervisors meeting of August 13, 2019.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Board is required to keep minutes of its proceedings. Once the draft minutes have been approved by the 
Board, they will be posted for the public on the County's website: www.inyocounty.us.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
N/A
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
N/A
 
FINANCING:
N/A
 
ATTACHMENTS:


	 Call to Order
	1. PUBLIC COMMENT

	 Closed Session
	2. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATIO
	3. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATIO
	4. CONFERENCE WITH COUNTY’S LABOR NEGOTIATORS [Pursua

	 Open Session
	5. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	6. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION AS REQUIRED BY LAW.
	7. PUBLIC COMMENT
	8. COUNTY DEPARTMENT REPORTS (Reports limited to two
	9. INTRODUCTIONS - The following new employees will b

	 Departmental - Personnel Actions
	10. Request Board: A)Approve the Program Integrity a
	Agenda Request Form
	Program Integrity and Quality Assurance (PIQA) Manager Job Description

	11. Request Board find that, consistent with the adopt
	Agenda Request Form

	12. Request Board: A) approve the modified job descrip
	Agenda Request Form
	Senior-Scientist-Assoc  general  job description - modified


	 Consent Agenda
	13. Request Board amend Board Minutes and Board Order
	Agenda Request Form
	20181002CSS- MammothLeaseRatification

	14. Request that your Board approve the Data Privacy a
	Agenda Request Form
	CDSS Privacy & Security Agreement

	15. Request Board: A) declare Bowman Asphalt of Bakers
	Agenda Request Form
	Bing Bid
	Bowman Bid
	Granite Bid
	Wulfenstein Bid
	Bid Tab

	16. Request Board: A) declare Bowman Asphalt of Bakers
	Agenda Request Form
	Granite Bid
	Wolfenstein Bid
	Bing Bid
	Bowman Bid
	Bid Tab

	17. Request Board: A) declare Bowman Asphalt of Bakers
	Agenda Request Form
	Bing Bid
	Bowman Bid
	Granite Bid
	Wulfenstein Bid
	Bid Tab

	18. Request Board approve Amendment No. 1 to the agree
	Agenda Request Form
	Amendment 1 to MGE Contract
	MGE Contract


	 Departmental
	19. Request Board consider the Letter of Interest rece
	Agenda Request Form
	P Huette 2019
	S Gagnon 2019
	Notice of Vacancy

	20. Request Board ratify and approve Agreement No. 19-
	Agenda Request Form
	19-96163 Inyo MCIP Agreement FY 19-20
	19-96163 Addendum A_MCIP FY 2019-20 (7.25.19).docx
	19-96163 Addendum B HIPAA
	GIA-610 rev 072019
	CCC 042017 rev 072019

	21. Request your Board ratify and approve the contract
	Agenda Request Form
	Kings View Telepsych Contract FY19-20

	22. Request Board ratify and approve the contract betw
	Agenda Request Form
	Inyo Contract with Crestwood Behavioral Health
	Crestwood ARF

	23. Request Board approve the minutes of the regular B
	Agenda Request Form


	 Comment
	24. PUBLIC COMMENT

	 Board Members and Staff Reports
	 ADJOURN

	County of: Inyo
	DepartmentAgency of: Health and Human Services 
	County of_2: Inyo 
	DepartmentAgency of_2: Health and Human Services
	County of_3: Inyo
	DepartmentAgency of_3: Health and Human Services
	For the County of:  Inyo
	DepartmentAgency of_4: Health and Human Services
	undefined: 
	undefined_2: 
	undefined_3: Marilyn Mann
	undefined_4: Director of Health and Human Services
	undefined_5: 
	undefined_6: 
	undefined_7: 
	ContractorBidder Firm Name Printed: 
	Federal ID Number: 
	Printed Name and Title of Person Signing: 
	Date Executed: 
	Executed in the County of: 
	Authorized Signature: 


